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Independent Auditors’ Report

To The Members of SERVICE MASTER CLEAN LIMITED
Repart an the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the sccompanying Standalone ind A5 financial swements of SERVICE MASTER CLEAN LIMITED (“the Company™), whach compnise
the Balance Sheet as at Mareh 31, 2018, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (ncluding Other Comgrehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Sistement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a surmimary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to a8 “Standalone Ind AS financial stalemends ')

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Minancial statemenls

The Company's Board of Direciors is responsible for the maners sinled in Section | M4(5) of the Companics Act, 2003 (“the Act”) with respect o the
prepanton of these Standalone Ind AS finsncinl sialements that pive a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in cquity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Stundards (Ind AS) prescribed under
section 133 af the Act read with the Companies { Indian Accounting Sandards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and olher accounting principles generally accepted
in india

This responsibility abs includes mainienance of adequate sccounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding (he assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irmsgulanities, selection and spplication of appropnate accounting policies, making judgments and
estimales that are reasanasble and pradent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequane intemal financiil conirals, that were operating elloctively
for ensuring the accuracy and completenzss of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presenlition of the Standalone Ind AS financial
ctatements that give a true and (air view and are free from materal misstatement. whether due to fraud or ermor

Auditer's BResponsibiliny

Our responsibility is 1o expeess an opinion on these Sindalone Ind AS linancial statéuents based on our sudit In conducting oot audit, we have tuken inlo
aceount the provisions of the Act. the sccounting and auditing standards and matters which are required o be included in the audil reporn under tha provisions
o thi Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Crder issusd under section 143011 1ol the Act

We condusted our mudit of the Smndalone Tnd AS financial stalements in accordnnce with the Standards on Audinng specified under Sectwn 143(10) of the
Act Thase Standiards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable pssuranee ibout whisthr the
Standalone Ind AS fnancial statements are free from matenal misstitement

An audit involves performing procedures o obtnin audit evidence about the amounis and the disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial aatements, The
procedures selécted depend on the suditor’s judpment, including the assessment of the nisks of material misstatement of the Smndalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due (o froud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 1nernal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statemems that give o true and i view in order to design audit procedurcs that ore approprate in the
circumstances, An audit also ineludes evaluating the appropriatencss of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company's Directors, as well as evalusting the overall presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements

We Believe that the mudit avidenca obtmned by us (s sufficient and approprte to provide a basis for aur audit ommon on the Standalone Ind AS financial
Flalemenis,

Opinion

in our apinion and to the best of our informaiion and aceording to the explanations gven 10 us. the aforesad Sundalone Ind AS financial saiemenis give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and far view m conformaty wath the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including the fnd AS. of the state af affaies of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profit, wotal comprehensive income, the changes in equity and
15 cash Mows fon the year ended on that date

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our sudit, we report that:
Bl mwc sought and obtaned all the miormation and explanations which to the best of our knowledige and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our
b) in dur opinion, proper books of account as requited by law have been kept by the Company 50 fur @ it appears from owr examination of these books
¢} the Balance Shest, the Statement of Profin and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and (he Statement of Cash
Flow dealt with by this Report sre in agreament wath the boaks of account
d] in our opinion, the sforcgud Standalone Ind AS financial sutements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under secuon 133 of the
Act read with relevant rules issued thereundier
¢} o the basis of the wiitlen representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2018 wken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disgualified a5 an March 31, 2018 from being appeinted as a director in terms of Seetion 164(2) of the Act
I} with respect 1o the adequacy of the imernal fnancial contrels over [imancil reporting of the Clompany and the operating eflectiveness of such controls,
refer 1o pur g:p_ﬂmlltpnnm “Annexurs A7 OUr [epoTl expresses An wm ndified opemon on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company 's
wntemal financial contiols over financial reparting :
1 with respect to the other matters o be included m the Auditors” Repart in accordance with Rule 1 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
ws amended, in our apinion and to the best of our information and sccording e the explanatons grven lo us
i }':ubclmnpng has disclosed the impacy, if any, of pending litigations as st Mareh 31, 2018 n (1s Standslane Ind AS financial smicment — refier Mote
(Y.
11 The Company did not have any long-tenm contr
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tii. There was no amount required 10 be trunsfered by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund,

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Reporty Order, 2018 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143{11) of the Act, we
give in the “Annexure B” o statement on the matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Onder

For A. MITRA & ASSOCIATES
Chariered Accountants
(Firm Regn. Na. 8268/C)

K

CA ALK MITRA
(Partner)

Membership No. — 15130
Flace: New Delhi
Dae: May 8, 2018
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ASSENERE =A™ TO THE INDEPENDENT ALDITURY REFORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under “Report on Onher Lapal and Resulatory Requirements® section of our report o the Members of SERVICE MASTER
CLEAN LIMITED as of even date)

Hepart on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reparting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Aet, 2013
(~the Act™)

We have audiied the mternal financial controls over Gnancml reporting of SERVICE MASTER CLEAN LIMITED {“the Company "} as of March 31_201%
in comjunction with our audit of the Standalone nd AS finangial sustements of the Company o7 the year ended on that dute

Management’s Responsibility for Tnternal Financial Canorols

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls bascd on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company censidering the essential cempenems of internal control stated in the Guidance Mot on Audit of tnernal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reponing isswed by the Institutz of Charered Accountants of India These responsibiliies include the disign,
implementation and maintenance of adequate iniernal fnancial controls tha were eparatng effectvely Tor ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of it
business., the safeguarding of ils assets, the proevention and detection of fravds and emors, the accumcy and completeness of 1he accounting, records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, a5 required urder the Compamies Act, 2013

Awditors” Hesponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit W conducted our
mudit in pccordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Intemal Financial Centrols Over Financial Beporting (the “Gundance Note™) ssued by the Instiwe
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing preseribed under Section 14310 of the Companics Act 2013, 1o the extent applicable 10
an audit of intermal financial controls. Thase Standards and the Guidanee Mote regaire thar we comply with ethical requirements and plun and perform the
audit 10 obtun reasonable assurance about whether adequate imermal fimaneial controls over financl reporting was established and maimtasoed dod 17 such
controls oparated effectively inall matenal respects.

Our audit involves performing procediires 10 obtmmn audit evidence shout the adequacy of the intgrnal financial controls system over financial reporting and
thetr operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial contrels over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of inlemal finsncul controls
aver financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exins, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effcctiveness of intemal control
based on the assessed risk The procedurces selected depend on the audnors” judgement, including the assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatoment of the
financial statemants, whether due o friod o emor

We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained, |5 sufficient and approprinte to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company 's internal financial
controls system over financml reportimg

Meaning of Internal Finnncial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s intemnal financial control over financial reporing is 3 process designed 1o provide reasonpble assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financinl sintements for extemal purpases in accordanes with generally seeepted ncenonting prineiples. A company”s internal

financial control over finuncial reporing ncludes these pohoes and procedures thn

{1} Periam lo the manienance of teconds thal, in reasonable delal. sccumately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,

{2} provide reasonable nssurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permil prepamation of financial stalements in sccordance with generally
accepled accounting pnnciples, and that recenpts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authonsations of management
and directors of the company; and

(331 provide reasonable assurance régarding prevention or imely detection ol unouthonised acqmsimion. use, or dispositon of the company s nssets that could
huve o moerisl efTect on the Grneial stements

Limitations of Intermal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Hecause of the mherent hmitations of internal Anancial controls over financial reporting, including the passihility of collusion or improper management
overnde of conirols, matenal misstatements due to crror or fraud may ocour and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the nternal financial
contrals vver financial reporting o future periods are subject 1 the nsk that the intermal financial control over Minancial reparting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the palicies or procedures may deteriomie

n
E'l:r apiton, to the best of our information and scearding 1o the explanations gven to us, the Company has, i all moenal respects, sn adequate imtemal
financial controls system oves financial reporting and such miemal fnengial controls over Gnanceal reporiing were opetating efTectively oo March 31, 2018,
based on the intérnal control over financial reporting critenia established by the Company considerng the essential components of stemal contral stited n
the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial Contrals Civer Financial Reponting issued by the Instinme of Chanered Ascountants of India

For A. MITRA & ASSOCIATES
Charterod Accountants

e

CA AR MITRA
(Partner)

Membership No.— 15230
Place:  Mew Delhi
Date: May & 2018
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ANNEXURE B 10 (HE DNDEFEXDENT ALDITORS KEPORI

[Reflerred 10 i paragraph 2 under Report on Other Legal snd Regulatory Requirements” section of our rapoi Lo the Members of SERVICE MAS TER CLEAN
L DAITED of even duii)

| 1) The Company has generally maimained proper records showing full particulars, including quantittive details and siuation of fixed assets
b} The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management a1 reasonable imervals As informed, the diserepancies noticed on physical
verificanon of [ixed assets as compared to book records were not matenal and have been properly deali with in the boaks of sccount
¢} The Company does not have any immovable propertics

(]

8)  As expluned to us, inventories have been physically venfied by thi management sl repular intervals dunng the vear
b} The discrepancies notieed on physical venfication of inventory as compared o baok records were not matenial and have been properly dealt
with 1n the hooks of account

3 a) The Company has given unsecurcd (oans to companics listed in the Register mumimned under Section |89 of the Companies Act, 2013
b} In cur opinion. the me of mierest and other ems and conditions of the gmnt of such lans are not, poma facie, prejudicial o the Company s
interast
&1 In our epinion, end secording to the information and explanations given o us, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment ol interest has
heen stipulated and repaymenis or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations
d) There are no overdue amounis m respect of such loans,

4 In our epinisn and according to the mformation and explanunons given w us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Secoon 185 and
|86 af the Compames Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making wvestments and providing guarantess and securities, where applicable

5 The Company has not accepied any deposis and 5o the dirdetives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed theie under do ol apply 1o the Company

& The Cemtral Government has not prescribed maintenance of eost records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Compames Acl 2013 in respeet
of the products dealt with by the Company.

‘s a) Smtwtory dues including provident fund, emplovees' sinle insurance, income W, service ax, professional tax, customs duty, excise duty, value
added tnx. cess and other stalulory dues apphcable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authontizs
though there have been some delays in deposit of dues relating to Service Taxand Income Tax.

b} There were no outstanding statutory dues as a8 March 31, 2018 for n peniod of more than six months from the date they became payable
o} Details of duss of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, and Valuz Added Tax which have not been depesiied as on
Maich 31, 2008 an account of disputes are given below: . =

Mame af stakhste MNature of dues Amount (in~ | Period ta which the | Forum where dispute is pending
INR million ) amount relates
Fuance Act. 1992 Service tas 120 e e [v] Appelinte Authorin -~ Tribunal level

8 In pur epimon and eecordimg Lo the information wnd explanations given to us the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dugs 1o financial
instiiutions, banks, Government or debenture holders

% a) The Company has raised term loans during the year and the same have been applied for the purposes for which they were rased
b} The Company has not reised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debi instruments)

W T the best of vur knowledee and according to the miommatien and explanations given to us, 1o fraud by the Company and no matenal fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the vear

11 Inouropimion and sccording (o the information and explanation given 1o us, and on the basis ol our examination of the records of the Company, the

Company has paid/provided for manegenial remuncration in sccordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of ssction 197 read
with Sehidule V m the Companies Act, 2013

12 Inowropinion and according (o the informanon and explanacions given to us, the Company 18 not a nidhe company and, therefore, paragraph 3 (xii)
of the Usrder 15 not appheable.

13 In our opinion and according (o the mfommaton and explinaton goven @0 us, mnd on the buss of our examinaton of the records of the Company,
transactions wilh related parties are in comphance with Section 177 snd 188 of the Compamies Act, 2013, where applicable and the detuls have been
disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable ndian acceunting standards

14, During the vear, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or privace placement of shares or [ully or partly convertible debentures and,
therefore, paragraph (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

15 Inowropinion and sccording 1o the informaion and explanation given to us, and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them dunng the year and, therefore, paragraph 3
{xv) of the Order 15 not apphcable.




A. MITRA & ASSOCIATES ?!':F"ESEEMNA —
PATMNA — 800 001
Ph : 0612-2323948
Fax:  06812-2323947
e-mail: a m_asso2003@yahoo co.in

16 The Company is not refuired 1o be registered under Section 45 (A of the Reserve Bank of Inda (RBI) Act, 1934

For A. MITRA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanis

{Firm W
CA ALK MITRA

(Partmer)

Membership No. - 15230

Place: New Delhi
Dt Mav B, 2018
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Al i INE mdllions except share dala

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

CA. ALK, Mitra
(Partmer)
M. No, 015230

(DN O0945635)

Mace: Mew Delhi
Date: May 8, 2018

{BIN 004772 56)

S va Koo Kaddu
Company Sccretary

*| Particulars Nule As al March Asat March | As at April
| Ma. 31. 2018 31, 2017 1. 2006
[ A [ ASSETS
Nom = Current Assets -
Property. Plant and Equipment 1 8344 86 21 67.37
Other Iruanglhlc Assets 6] 2235 RER. 1 3514
" Financial Assets -
(1) Investments fi 83198 749 66 5266
{i) Onher Non-Current financial m:m i 7 49,06 3531 1572
| Delerred tax assets umu .. 8 14.69 2433 1808
Income tax Assers — ——tn 8 | eed 5540 | 3486
| Other Non - Current Assets P - 369 =
Total Non — Current Assets . 1.092.96 97846 LO14.43
Current -tmtu L
Inventories o o 10 1.14 1.19 .18
hnam:uﬂ Assets D
. {ﬂ Trade Receivables B S 198.48 14352
(i1) Cashand Cash Fquivalents 218 33860
). Bml rla:lm'r ather than uhmg'_ Tl 279 373
{iv) Other current Financial Asscts [ s | sl
| Other Current Asscls - 78.53 4399
Asvels classified as h-:ld r-:r: dmnbumn m shardmldcrs - 41397 =
Total Current Asscls 64716 Rd42.62 658.65
| Total Assels = e 1,740.12 1.821.08 167308 |
B | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Bl e
| "'““"3' B = WP (PSS
| Equity share capital 14 195.13 19513 19513
' Other Equity 15 94783 134030 | 131273
| Equity artributable toowners : = 1,142.96 1.535.63 150786
Total Equity 114296 1,535.63 1,507 .86
ILin bilities
Non — Current Liahilities = ; o .
I-mam.:lal Liahilities
(1] Borrowings r—_" 16 | 336 1186 1993
Provisions i ) 0 | 1795 14.73 935
_ Total Non- Current liabilities - o Wl i i 70,91 3661 9.28
| Current Liabilities |
| I-mnnq.ml Linbalities i o
tﬂ Bclrmwmgs 16 25723 RS 64 -
(i Trade Payables G 17 eI 3396 15.74
{in) Other current fnancial Imbsime-t 15 127.37 9593 69.70 |
" Other Current Liabilities . 21 10574 389 a7.02
| Prcﬂslons 20 543 440 344
[ Total Carrent Linbililies - meas|  vees | imes
Total Liabilities 597.16 I85.45 165,22
| Total Equity and Liabilities 1,740.12 I N21.08 1.673.08
Notes: The above balance sheet should be read m compunciion wath the accompany ing notes.
For A, Mitra & Associates o For n
Chartered Accomnnmis = L &
(Firm Regn, No, 5268/C) . = 5
! Ravidm Kishore Sinha W
| Mrecton IMrectior




Service Master Clean Limited

e ———
Al INR millicns except share dala

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

. Nule Yeur ended
RACHCUS No. “arch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Income e SEESEe T
| a)  Revenue from Operalions 23 ) 177049 142661
b)_ Other [ncome # | my 2640
) Oiher Gain/loss 25 1.07 0.1l
Total Income (a + b+ ¢) 1 80369 1.453.12
Expenses = BN - _ —
~a)  Costof materials consumod i e - L _n ﬂ‘?
= b) E;mpft_}}ihgnerlw expense 26 ! SW 13 1148 1%
© | & Finance casts 27 B 2036 |
d) _Depreciation and amortization cxpenses a—— . | e 21.26 21.20
e)  (nher expenses 20 71,57 207 58
Total expenses(a+h+c+d+e ) 1.762.68 1.434.88
3 Profit hefore tax and exceptional items (1-2) 41.01 18.24
4 Exceptional items - -
5 Profit before tax (3+4) 41.01 18.24
6 | Tax Expense e i Rrr—— ! _ s
| Current lax £ .. 1289 1
Defemred lax . S : 8 I (6.49)
Total Tax expense 1149 (6.49)
7 Profit for the vear (5 -b) 19,52 14.73
8 Other Comprehe: nsive income m )
iu:m: that will not be reclassified to profit or loss i
___!:}__I_l_t_:fmmumrrmnl of Defined benefits plan. W= = T 0.76
b} Income tax relating to theseiiemns & (1.0d) {0.24)
Other (‘mpule nsive income for the vear l,'lt‘t ot of tanes) 269 0.52
q Total Comprehensive income for the year (7 + 8] 1231 515
L] Eamings Per Share (EPS) [Face value per equity share Rs 10} 30
{ay Basic (INR) |00 1.27
i (k) Diluted (INR) L n 1.00 127
I Weighted average equily shares used in ..amputml earnings per equiry share
(a)  Basic (Mos) 1,95,12 800 195,12, 800
(h) Diluted (Nos) 1,95,12,800 1,95,12 800

Nate; The above statcment of proiil and loss should be read i conjunction with the accompanying noles.

For A. Mitra & Associates or and hall gf the Bourd
Chartered Accounianis 1
{Firm Regn. No. 5268/C) q:_ > w

-_—

_gr,wﬂi

jiva kumar Kaddu
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary
Date: May 8, 2018

[ = n.au ,l
M i W ,IF'-T::." _.‘;' .__ A Ravindra Kishore "_'r1ﬂhﬂ"‘_:m%_—mg‘lmia—'___-
|Ll e ":qu'J ® rryl  Direetor
CA. AK. Mitra = o S0 ;jJ' (DIN: 00945635) (DIN: DO477256)

{Partner)
M. No. 015230
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Al tr INK mililfons excem share data

Statement of Changes in Equity
A, Equity Share Capital

— Amounts
As at April 1. 2016 195.13
Changes in equity share capital -
As it March 31,2017 TERT
Chiinges in equity share capital -
Ad at March 31, 2018 195.13
B.  Other Equity
B Equity Contribution | Reserves and Surplus | Total Other
by Pareni Securities Retained Equity
L. e premium reserve | earmin L S
Balance as a1 April 1. 2016 0.07 135160 (38.94) 1.312.73
Profit for the year - - 2473 | T E]
Other comprehensive income | S = == 5 032 | 0.32
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear - - 2525 | 25285
| ransactions with owners in lhicir capacity as owners: )
Fair valuation of Comporate guaraniee provided by Security & 252 - = 253
Intelligence Servives India Lid
Balance as at Mareh 31, 2017 2.59 1.351.60 (13.69) | 1.340.50
Equity Contribution |-ooerves ind Junplus Total Other
by Parent Secarifies Retalned Equity
premium reserve earnings
Asat April 1, 20017 159 135160 (13.69) 1.340.50
Profir for the year - . 19.52 1828
Cither comprehensive income = - 2.69 393
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear - - 1221 211
Less: Unlised for Demerger of SIS AMC s (414,10 - (414.10)
Employee Stock Option Expense - - -
Fair value Adjusiment of Corporate guarantee provided by (0.78) E 078
I_L'ggg_-_:rizy& Intelligence Services India [ 1d] h
At March 31, 201% 1.81 937.50 8.52 947.83
Noles:
The above statement of changes in eguity should be read in conjuncton with the accompany ing notes
For A. Mitra & Associates r hallpf the Board

Chartered Accountaniy
(Firm Repn. Mo, 5268/

AR Nrer—

CA- ALK Mitra
{Pariner)
M. No. DIS230

Place: Mew Delhi
Date: May 8, 2008

b2

Ravindra Kishore Sinha W
TeCir

[Director
(DN D004 3635)

- -

{DIN: 00477256)

.-g‘r ~
0 Kaddu
Company Secretary




Service Master Clean Limited

All in INR miliion except shore dato

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2018

Particulars Year ended
N __ Miarch 31,2018 | March 31,2017 |
_A. | Cash flow from operating sclivities - A
| NetProfit before taxation i RS b Moy 1824 |
__AdJlﬂ:d. fior. == |
| Depreciation and Amortization expenses 203 | 0|
Finance Costs 2753 | 157 |
- Inkerest income ¢ classified a5 investing cash flows (3213} 126.51)
Operating profiviless) hefore working capital changes =T 5767 2872 |
Maovement in working cn_plr.l! Sl A,
Decrease / (inerease) in Trade receivables (B3 641 i 54 ¢t_5|_ .
Dc::rusc.’tmacuc) in mwmunei 0.05 (0.01) |
Decrease | [mmm:mulh:r current assets 1580 (32 a),|
Decrease/(inerease) in other current financial assets (114 15) _nsa)
| {Decrease) f inerease in Trade plylbl:i (347 1817
i Decrease) [ merease n proysons 176 713 |
{Decrease | [ increase in other current liahilities fah 84 (5.38)
(Decrease ¥increase i other current financial liabalitics 4.7 46
. e s =5 e e o [ERAO). (28.99)
Decreasel(increase) i other non-Current assels (7.45) (10.63) |
| Decreasef/(increase] in ulI_E_l_q._l_tc_urmn t'mum:ml assels {13 47 (2.80) |
| Cash (used inygencrated from operations N [(44.32) (42.42)
Direct tax paid including fringe benefit tax inet of refunds) [24.68) (20.54)
fi __‘fg_t_ll@ inflow (outflow) from operating activities = - - (69.00) (62.96)
B, | CASH FLOWS I‘IIIOM l]\VES I'I\G ACI IVIT[ES = P =
Purchase of property plant and equipment and changes in capital work in progress (18.98) (38 16)
Purchase of Investments b o, == = - (55 58) (320 R3)
Interest received _— _an LRAR
| | Netcash ouiflow ﬁ'uln imruiing aclivities (TINL.54) (340.31)
| C. | CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - B : TV
Procmr. ﬁ'nm u:r_n'_l loans 15, ?"? N (1.49)
- {.hnﬁc in loans repayable on dt:'rn.-'nl = ,u_:"_q_'"_ 83.65
Interest paid il S e (27.704 (17.62)
| et cash inflow {outflow) from financing activities 192.03 66,54
| D. | Netincrease (decrease) in cash and eash equivalents (A+B+C) 2119 (336.73)
E. ‘Cash and cash cquivaicnis at the begimning of the year il 25.60 36233 |
G. | Cash and cash equivalents at the end of lhe_u_l-r (D+E) 46.79 2560 |
" Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash Now statement - SRy e e
| Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following ~ March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Cash und cash equivalenis (210.43) _(60.05)
Closing cash credit 5722 85.65
Balances as per statement of cash Nows 46.7% 25,600

Note: The ahave statement of eash flows should be read i conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Mentes to the finaneial st lements

1. Company overview

Sarvice Master Clean Lunited (“the Company ") 14 company lumited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India The Company was mcorporated on
March 13, 2009 as & private limited company and converted itse € into a public limited company on March 5, 2010 Conseguently, the Company chingad
its name from Service Master Clean Privite Limited to Service Master Clean Limited lis registered office is situated st Annapuma Bhawan, Paliputra
Telephone Exchenge Road, Paina, Bihar = 800010, Indie. and 1t's principal place of business is <ituated at Plot No 11, 3l Floor, DDA Commumity
Center, Okhla Phase-[, New Defhi-| 10020,

The Company is engaged in rendenng facility management services in the areas of cleaning and houst keeping sernces

The financial statements ane presented in Indian Rupess (INR) rounded ofT 1o nearest mulliony except share and per share data, uniess otherwise stated
Due o rounding ofT, the numbers presented throughoul the document may not add up precisely o the tofals and percentages may nol precisely reflect the
absolute figures

Thase financial statements were authonzed for issue by the dircclors on May 8, 2018

2. Summary of significant accounting pohicies
This not provides a list of significant sccounting policics adopted in the preparation of these [inancial smements,

2.1 Basis of preparation

Thesz financial sttements are prepared in necordance with Indian Accounting Standards { Ind-A5) and comply in afl material respects with the Ind-
AS and other applicable provisions of the Campames Act, 3013 (“the Companies Act™) The [nd-AS are notified under Saction 133 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time fo time

For all peniods up 1o and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards notified under the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (s smended). read topether with paragraph 7 of the Campanies
(Accounts) Rules, 2004 (“Previous GAAP™) The actual dme of wansition to [nd-AS 15 Apnl 1, 2017 for the financial year ended Masch 31, 2018 and
so the financial stitements for the year ended March 31, 2017 have also been mnsloied 1o Ind-AS resulting in the balance sheet as of April 1, 2016
being redrivwn to comply with Ind-AS These linancial sialements for the yem ended March 31, 2018 are the first financial suiements the Company
has preparcd in accordance with Ind-AS Refer note 37 for an explanation of how the transition from Frevious GAAF to Ind-AS has affected the
Company s financial pozsition, financial performance and cash Mows

L1 Basis of measurcomen

The financial statements have been prepared under the lushonieal eost convention on an acerual mnd going concern basis, except for the following material
Items which have been measured at fair valug as required by relevanl lnd-AS

) cermin financial assers and financiel liabilities (ineluding derivative financial instruments) and contingent consideralion that are messured at fzir vilue,
b) assets held for distribution o owners upon demerger that are held at lower of carrying cost and fair value less comt bo distribule,

¢} share hased payments, and

d} The defined benefit asseta linhility ) which s recognised as the present value of defined heashit obligation less Fair value of plan assets

Accounting policies bave been applied consistemly w all periods presentad 1n these financial satements

Far clanty, vanous items are zagregated in the statements of profit and loss and balance sheet These ilems are disaggregated separately in the notes to
the financial statements. where applicable

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

a1 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and Babilines in the balance shea basad on current/non-current clasafcation An osssl as current when i1 s

(1) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consamed in normal operating cvcle

(i1} Held primanly for the purpese of mading

(it1) Expected o be realised wathin twelve months after the reporting peniod, or

(iv) Cﬂ'lo;r cash equivalent unless the asset s restncted from being exchainged er used to setile a hablity for at least twelve manths afier the reporiing
peri

All other assers are chissified a5 non-currem

A liabality 15 curremt when,

(i) It s expected 1o he settled in nonmal operating cycle

(i) 1t s held prmanly for the purposs of wading

(11} In ts due to be settled within twelve months anter the reporting perod, or

(v} There is no uncenditional nght 1o defer the settlement of the liability for a1 least wwelve months afier the reponing period. Terms of a linhility that
could, at the eption of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the ssue of equity instruments do not affect its clussi fcation.

The Company classifies all other Iabiities as non=current

Defierred tax assets and Hahilities are classified os non-current assets and limbilities

by Property, plant and cqoipment

ot el measarement
Freehold land is camied ot histoncal cost All other inems ol property, plant and equipment are mensured o cost less accumulated deprecation and
impairment losses, (fany. Cost compnses the purchase price and directly atiributable cost of bringing the assct to its working conditian for its intencded
use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving of the purchase price Ceneml and speeific borrowing costs directly antrihutable 1o the
construction of g qualifying s are cupitalied as pat of e cost
Subsequent expenditure pelated b0 an ilem of property, plant and equipment is added 1o its hook value only if it increases the future bencfits from the
existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard or period of performance, All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including
day-to-day repair, maintenance sxpenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profil and loss for the year duning which such
expenses are incurred
Oin iramsition to Ind-AS, since there 15 a0 change in the funetional currency, the Company has ¢locted to continue with the carmying value of all its property,
plant and equipment recognised as at April |, 20)é-miEired.os per the Previous GAAP and use thal carrying value a5 the deemed cast of property, plant
and equipment P2l
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Property. plam und equipment under construction and cost of assets not ready for use an the yenr-end are disclosed as capital work- in- progress

Depreciaiion

The Company depreciates property, plant and aquipment over the estimuted oseful life on o written down value methed from the date the msscls aro
avaulable for use. Asscts acquired under finance lease are depreviated over the asset's uselul hfe, or over shorier of the estimated wseful lifi of the asset
and the related lease term if there is no reasonable certamiy thar the Company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. Leaschold improvements
ar¢ amartized over the shoter of estimated wseful life of the asset or the relatied lease term Frechold land is not deprecusted

The estimated useful lives of assets ane as fallows'

Category Useful life

Buihdings Al years

Plant and machinery 15 years

Leasshold improvement Shorter of useful life or lease penod
Computer equipment 3 years

Furmiure and fixiures 10 years

(Mfice Equipment 5 years

Vehicles B years

The useful lives 25 given above best rapresent the penad over which the managemen! expocts 10 wse these assels, based on lechnical assessment. The
estimated usaful lives for these assets may therefore be different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C of Sohedule [ of the Componies Act 2013

The residual values are generally not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The resedual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant snd equipment are reviewed at ench finuncial year-end and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate

Additions are depreciated on a pro-rata basis from the date the aseet is avnlable for use il i date the esets are derecognised

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significam part inidally recogmised 15 derecognissd upan dispesal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from 15 use of disposal Any gmin or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal procesds
and the carrying amount of the asset] s 10cluded in the income statement when the asset 15 derecogn ised

e} Investment properiies
Property that is held for long-term réntal yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is clisilisd as invistment

praperty

Investiment propemics are measured initally ol cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent 1o initial recegnition, investment properties are siated al cost
less accumulated depreciation and sccumulmed imparrment loss, if any.

The eost includes borrowing eosts [or long-lerm construonon projects if the recognition critena are met Subsequent expenditure is capitalissd 1o the
ssel s carmying amount onky when ot 15 probable that fuiure economic benefits assecmied with the expendiione wall Mow o the Company and the oost of
such expenditure can be measured reliably. Al other repair and maintenance costs are recognised m profitor boss as incwrred. When pat of an investment
property 1s replaced the carmying amount of the replaced pant iz derecognized

Investment propemies are depreciated using wiviten down value method over their esumated useful lives of 60 years. The useful life has been determincd
bmsed on 4 techmcal evaluabon per{ommed by the management s expert

Since thete i$ no change 1n the funciional curreney, the Company has alected to continue with the carrving value (o all af s mvestment propery as
recognsed m s Previous GGAAP financial stalements as deemed cost at the transition date, viz, Apnl 1, 2016

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been dispased ol or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from ther disposal The differsnce between the net disposal proceeds and the carman g amount of the asset s recogmsed in profit or
logs in the period of derecognition

di  Intangible asscis

Inmngible aesets acquired separmely nre measured on initial recogninion at histoneal cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired (0 a business combination
i5 ther finr value of the date of acquisinon Following inibal reeognition, imtangible assets s camied al cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impaimment losses Intemally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised software development coste. are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflectad in profit or less in the perind in which the expenditure is ineurred

On transiton b Ind-AS, since there 15 no change (n the functional curtency, the Company has elected 1o continue with the carrying value of all its
intangible assots recognised asm Apeil 1, 2016 measured 83 per the Previous GAAF and use that carrying value as deemed cost of the intangible assets

The useful lves of intangible sssets we assessed ax enther finile or indefinite [ntangible asscts with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic
lifie an written down value method and License & Franchisz is amortisad on straight line basis and asseszed for impairment whenever therz 15 an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaned The amorisation period and the amortisation method for an mtangible asset wath a finite uselul hie are reviewed
ot least at the end of each reporting peniod. Changes in the expected useful hife or the expected pattern of consumption of Future cconomic benefits
embodied 1n the asset are considered 1o modify the amartisation period or method, as appropnate, and are treated w5 changes i sccounting estimates. The
amonisation expense on intangible assets with finite hves 15 recognised in thee sistement of profit and loss

The estimated uselul lives of mtangible asseis are as lollows.

Ca Useful life
Compuier soltwire 5 vears
License & Franchise 20 years

Gains or tosses arising from derccognilion of an intangible asset are measured as the dil'fem;n: between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the assel is derecoynised

Safrware

Costs incurred w1 developing products or systems and costs incurred in scquinng software and heenses that will contribute 1o future penod Granceal
benefits through revenue generation andior cost reduction are capialised 1 sollware and systems Costs capitalised include exsernal direct costs of
matenisls, services, and direct pavrall an Wm of employees' time spent oo the project

% 1 11
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el Mowestment in subsidirics, associales aod joint ventires

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control, The company controls an investee when it is exposed 1o, or has rights 1o variable retums
lrom ils irvilvement with the investes and has the ability 1o affect those retums through its power over the investee

An asociate is an entity over which the Compiny has significant mflugnce. Significant influence is the power 1o pamicipate in the financial and operating
pelicy decisions of the invesiee but |3 not contred or joint control over these policies This i generally the case where the Company holds between 20%
and 50% of the voung nghts

A joint venture 15 a ype of joini arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture foint control 15 the contmctually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when dectsions about the relevant activites
regquire unanimous comsent of the parties shanni control.

EWNS made in determimng whether significant influence or yoint conirol are similar o those necessary o determing contral over the
8

Investments m subsidiancs, associates and jownt ventures is accounted for at cost On transition 0 Ind-AS, the Company has elecied 10 continue with the
carrying value of all s investments in subsidianes, sssociates and joinl ventures recognized as & Apnl |, 2016 measured a5 per the Previous GAAP and
used that earrying villue as the deemed cost of investments in subsidianics, asiociates and joinl ventures,

fi  Fimancial imstrumeinls

A financial instrument s any contract that gives rise to o financial a2s&t of one entrty and a financial luability of equity instrament of another cntity
Financial assers

Iritial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised mitally of Bur value plus, n the case of financial assets not recorded at faar value thoough profit or loss, tmnsuction
costs tht are atirbutable to the scqusition of the financial ssset. Purchases o sales of Anancial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
establiched by regulation or conventon in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the imde date, e | the date that the Company commits
1o purchase o sell the asze

Subseguent measurement

Far purpases of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in four categones

(1) Dl instruments ot amartised cost

(1) Dhebt instruments ol Gur value threugh other comprehensive mcome (FVTOCH

i) Dbt instruments. derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through peolit or loss (FVTPL)
{iv) Equity instruments measuned at fair value through other comprehensive meome FWTOCT

Fimmanclal instrumienis af amontived cost

A “debt instrument” is monsured at the amortsed cost of bath the following conditions are met:

{11 The asset s held within a business model whose objective 15 10 hold assets for collecting contraciual cagh flows, and

{i1) Comtractual temms of the ass=t give nise on specified dates 1o cash Bows that are solely payments of principal and mierest (SPPD) on the principal
amount putstanding

After initial measuremant, cuch financial assets are subsequently measured ol amontised cost using the 2ffective inlerest i (EMR) method  EIR is the

raie that exactly diseounts cstimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross canying amourdt of a Fnancinl asser

When caloulming ETR the Company esnmates the expected cash flows by considaring all the contractual terms of the financial instrument | for esample,

prepayments, extensions call and similar opions) bul does nol consider the expected credit losses Amortised cost is caleulated by tking into account

any discount or premum on acyusition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The imterest income based on EIR is included a5 mterest

income a3 a part of sther income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impamment are recopmised in profit or boss A gan of loss on

such financial asset which 1 not part of a hedging relationship s recognised 1n profil or losz when the asset i¢ derecopnised This catemory penemily

applies to trade and other recetvables. For more mivonation on receivables, refer to Note 11

Fimancial imsirament @ FETOCH

A “debl mstrument’ 1 classified as 4 the FVTOC] o both of the Iollovwime critena ame met

(i} The abjective of the business model 15 achieved bath by callecting contracinal cash Aaws and sélling the finanoml assets, and

(i) The asset’s contractual cash Nows represent SPPL

Deht instruments included within the FYTOCT category are measured as al each reporting date at far value Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehengive income (OCT) However, the Company recognizes imerest income caleulated using the EIR methad, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or boss On derecognition of the asset, cumulanive gan or loss previously recognised in OCT is reclassified
frem equity 1 profit or loss

Financial instrument at FVTPL

FVTEL is o residug! entegory for debt mstruments Any deht instrument, which does not meet the enteria for cateponizstion as al amartized cost or as
FVTOCL is classified as a1 FYTPL

In addition, the Company may elect 1o designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOC] enterm, as a1 FVTTL. However,
such alection is made only If doing o reduces or oliminates 4 measurement of recognition meansistency (referred o a8 “accounting mismatch’ s

Dbt instruments included within the FVTPL calegory are measured at Bur value with all changes recognized in the profit or loss in respect of sach assels
that are nod part of a hedging rélstonstup The gain (loss on assets measured at FVTPL are pr i in the of profit and loss within ather
grinsTasses in the period in which it prises Inerest income {rom these financisl assets 15 included m other income

Eqpuiry investments
All equity investments in scope of [nd-AS 109 are measured ot fair value Eguity instruments which are held for trading and contingsnt consideration
recopnised by an acquirer in a business combinanon o which Ind-AS 103 apphes are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equily instruments, (he Company
may make an irrzvocable election 1o present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fiuir value The Company makes such election on
an instrumeni=by=instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irevocable
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument us ot FVTOCL then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized
in the OCL There 12 no reoycling of the wmounts from OCI to profit of lose. éven on ale of investment However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within squity
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with gainfoss presented in the statement of prenl and loss within
other pains/losses in the period in which it anises.
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Derecognition of financial airets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a pant of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised {i ¢ removed

from the Company s balunce sheet) when

(1} The rights o reccive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

[ The Company has iransferred its nights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumad an oblization 16 pay the received cash fows in full without
material delay to a third pany undet a ' pass-thsough” amangement, and cither (21 the Company has transferred subsdantially all the nsks and rewnrds
n:f'lh: assel_or (hi the Company has neither iransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the nsset

When the Company his nol ransferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership of the financial nsset, the fimancial asset is not i

Similarly, where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset 15 continued to be recogmsed to the exient of coniauing invalvement in the

finarcial asse

Fmipairmient of financlal assets

The Company recognizes loss allovances on o forward-looking bisis usang the expected eredit bozs (FCL ) madel for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profil or loss. Lifitime ECL allowance is recogrieed for trade recenvables with no significant financing companent. For all other
financinl assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount cqual to the | 2-month ECL unless there has been a sigmificant increase in credit nisk
from bl recogniion in which case they are measured a1 lifetime ECL Note 35 detwits how the Company determines whethe there has been & significant
ingrense in the credsl sk The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required 1o adjust the loss allowance ot the reporting date is recopnized
in the statement of prefit snd koes.

Financlal labilites

Praitial recagnitfon wnd measuremeni

Financial liabihnies are classified, o ininal recognition, as financial labilities # Fur value through profit or loss, bomowings, pavables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effecuve hedge, as approprate

All fmancial liabslities are recognised inially a1 e value and, in the ease of loans and borrowings and payables, net of durecily attnbutable transaction
(= 5

The Company ‘s financial Labililies welude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial gusranee contracts and
dervative financial insrumenis.

Nubseguens measurement
The meéasurement of financial liabilitics depends on their elassification, as desenbed below

Financial Hubilitics af faie valie trough profit or less

Financial liabilities at faiv value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for tradime and Gnancisl liabs ies designated upon initial
recognition as al fair value through profit or loss. Financial habilities are classified as held for trading of they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also mcludes denvative financial mstruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
hedging instrurnents in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109, Scparated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designuied s effecuve hedging insiruments. Gains or losses on habilines beld for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition af fair value through profit or loss are designated ai the imital date of recogrition, and only
il the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied For liabilities designated as FYTPL, far value gains/losses aftnbutable to changes in own credit risk are
recogmized in OCL These gains/losses are nol subsequently transferred to prodit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative pain or
Jogs withan equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Borrowings

Adter initial recognition, bamowings are subssquently maasured it amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction cosis) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit of loss over the period of the borrowing using the FIR methed. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as wansaction costs of the lozn te the extent it 15 probable that some or all of the fcility will be drawn down, In this case. the fee s defermed
until the draw down occirs: To the cxtent there is no evidence that it is probalde that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the Tee s capitalised
ms o propayment for Hguidity services and amortised over the penod of the eility o which o relates

Preference shares which are mandatonly redeemable are classified as lishilities. The dividends on these preferénce shares, 1o the extent such dividends
wre mondatonly payable, ane recognised m profit or loss as finance costs

The fair value of the liability portion of an opiionally convertible debenture’ bond! preference share o a zero-coupon debeniure’ bond’ preference share
or compalsorily convertible dehenture where the price af conversion ol the debenture imto equity share is not fixed, 15 determined using a market mie of
interest for an equivalent non-convertble bond. This amount 15 recorded s a bability on an smorused cost basis unbl exbinguished on conversion of
redemption of the bonds. The remamder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound financial instrument. This 1s recognised and
included in sharcholders” eguity, net of income tax effiects, and not subsegquently remeasured

‘When the terms of o (nancial lability are renegotiated and the entity issoes equity mstrument 1o a creditor to extinguish all or part of a lubility (debt for
equity swap), a gain or loss is recogrised in profit or boss, which is measured a5 the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liahility and
the Fair value of the equity insrument issued

Horrowings are classifiod 45 corent liabilities unless the Company hos an unconditional rght to defer settlement of the ability Tor @l least 12 months
after the reponting period. Where there is a breach of a maserial provision of 8 long-term loan arrangement on or hefore the end of the reporting perind
wath the effect that the linbility becomes payable on demand on the seporting date, the enbity does not classify the lahility as current. (7 the lender agreed,
after the reporting period and belore the approval of the financsl statements for issue, not 1o demand payment 45 3 consequence of the breach.

Financial puarenice contmcis
Financial gunrantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts thal require a paymenl lo be made to reimburse the holder (o7 a loss L incurs
hecouse the specilied debtor fails 10 make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt insinament. Financial guaraniee contracts are
recopnised imitially as 2 lability a1 fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly minbiable to the msmnce of the puaranice. Subsequently,
the lability i measured at the higher of the amoumt of loss allowance determined a5 per impairmient fequirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount
recognised kess cumulative amortisation
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Derecogniton

A finanesal lishility i5 derscogmised when the obligation under the liability 12 discharged or cancelled or expites: The difTerence between the carmying
amount ¢f a Minancial liambty that has been extmpuished of trmnsferred 10 onother party ond the consideration paid, including any non-cash s
transferred or liabihtics assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other pains' losses. When an existing linancial Iinbility 15 replaced by another from the
ssme lender on substantially different terms, or the torms of an existing liability are substanbally modified, such an exchunge or medification is treased
&5 the derecognition of the eniginal hability and the recogninon of a new lishility The difference in the respective camying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as other gains/losses.

Derivatives

Derivatives arc ininally recognissd a1 fair value ou the date a denvative contract 15 entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value af the
cend of each reporting period The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends upon whether the denvanve is designoted as a hadping
nstrument, and 1f 5o, e narre of t ivem baing hedped. and the type of hedge relationship designated

[Derivatives which are nol designaied as hedges are accounied for at fmr value through profit or loss and are included in other gaine’ lossy

Embedded derivetives

An embedded dervative 15 component ol a hiybrid (com bined ) nstrument that wlso meludes o non-derivanve host contract - with the effect that some
of the cash flows of the combined inStrument vary in & way similar to a stand-alone denvative An embedded denvauve causes some o all of the eash
flows that otherwase would be required by the contract 10 be modified according 1o a specified interest rate, financial instiument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate. (ndex of prices or mtes, credit rating or credit index. or other vamable, provided in the case of & non-finaneinl varmble that the
variahlo is not specific 10 a pany to the contract

If the hybrid contract contans a host that is o fimancial assey within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives.
Rather, it applics the classification requirements contained in [nd-AS 109 to the entire hvbnd contract. Denvatives embedded in all other host contrcts
are accounted for as separste derivanves and recorded ar fair value if their economic charactenstics and nsks are not closely related to those of the host
coniracts and the host confracts are nod held For trading or designated a1 fair value though profit or loss These embedded derivatives are messured ot fair
valuz with changes in fair valoe reeognised in profit or loss, anless designated as cffective hedging instrumeats Reassessment only cceurs i there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that signilcant |y modifies the cosh Nows that would stherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss

ReclaseifTeadion of finencial assets
The Company determines classification of firancral assets and habihies oo mitial recopriition. Afer iniual recognition, no reclassification is made for

finpncinl aagers which are aquity mstruments and (inancial Labilities. For financial assets which ase debl instruments, a reclassificafion 15 mde only if
there 15 a change 1n the business model for managing those assets. Changes 1 the busingss model are expected 1o be infrequent The Company s senior
management determines change in the busimess model a5 8 resull of exteral or mternal changes which are significant 1o the Company s operaiions. Such
changes are evident 1o extemal partics. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases 1o perform an sctivity that is
significant 10 its operations I the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclussification dute which
1 the [irst doy of the immedutely next reporting period following the change in business model The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gnins, losses {(including impairment gnins or losses) or inlerest. ;

ffsetting of financial M
Firancial assets and financial liabilines are offser, and the net amount 15 reported i the balance sheet of there 15 3 curvently enforceable legal nght 1o

offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the linblities simultancously. The legally
enforceable night must not be contingent on future events and must be enforeesblo in the normal course of husiness and in the event of defhull, insolveney

or bankruptcy of the Company of the counterpany

#)  Trade Recevables
Trade receivables are recogmsed mitilly o Far value and subsequently messured ot smortrsed cost wsing the elfective interest mathod, less provision for

imparrment

by Current and deferred lax

Income tax expense or eradit for the period is the wx pavable on the current period”s tcable income based on the applicable tax rate adjusted by changes
in deferred tx assers and linbilities attmbutable (o femporary differences and 1o unused tox losses and unused tax credits:

The cwrrent income tax is a charge caleolated on the busis of ax laws enatted or substantially esacied al the end of the reporting penod Management
periodically evaluates pasttians taken in lax returms with respect 1o sitush ons i which applicable tax segulation 15 subject o mlgrpretation 1t establishes
provisions where apprpriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid 1o s suthorties

Deferred iax

Deferred tay is provided using the liahility method on temporary differences beiween the tx bases of assets and liabilines and their carmying amounts for

financial reporting purposes ol the reporting date

Deferred Lax labalities are recogmsed for all taxable lemporary differences, except

(1) ‘When the defierred tox liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in 2 transaction that 1= not o business combination
and, ot the time of the wmnsaction, aifects neilher the accounting profit mor taxable profit or loss

[ii) In respect of laxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiarics, associates and inleresss in joint venrures, when the nming of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlied and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresecable future

Deferred tax asseis are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. the carry forward of unused e credits und any unused lax losses Defemed

lax aesets are recognised Lo the extent that it 15 probable that taxable profin will be avarlable aganst which the deductible tempomnry differences, and the

carry forward of unused tax credsts and unused tax logses can be il jsed, except

{1} When the deferred tmx nsset relating to the deduetible temporry difference wises fram the il recognition of an asset or hability in a transaction
that 15 not & business combination and, at the lime of the fransaction, alfects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(i) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associntes and interests in joini veniures, deferred
assets arc recopnised only to the extent that it i3 probahle that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and Lixable profit will

s can be utilised
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The carrving amount of deferred tay 255085 15 reviewed 2t cach réportmg date and reduced (o the exteni that it 15 no longer probable thit sufficient tmcable
profit will be available 10 ollow all ar part of the deferred 10x asset w0 be utilised. Unrecognised defierred 1ax assets are re-assessed 4t each reporting date
and are recognised 10 the extent (hat i1 las become protable that (une msable profit will allow the deferred tax asset 10 be rocovered

Deferred tax assets and lalitios are measuned o the mx rates that are excpected 16 &pply in the vear when the asset i reahised or the lishality 15 senled,
buased o nx rabes (and tax lows) that have been enacted or substantively enicted at the reporting date

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable nght exists 10 set off current 1ax Assets against current tax liskilities

The net ameunt of tax recoverable from, or payable 10, the taxation authonty 15 included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet. Current
and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except 1o the extent that it relates o ems recognised 1n other comprehensive income or direetly in equity.
In this case, the lax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

1y Ioveniories

Inventories are valued at the lower of the cost or net realizable value, Net realizable value is the cstimated sefling price m the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and estimared costs necessary fo make the sale. Cost includes cusiom duty, freight and other charges as
applicable The Company periodically reviews inventories fo provide for diminution in the value of, and/or any unserviceable or obsolele, invenlones,
Costs incurred in bringing each product to 1ts present locatron and condition are accounted for as follows

Uniforms: cosi inchudes eost of purchase and ather costs incurred in bringing the invenlories 1o their preseni locatton and condibon Cost 15 determinied
on first m, fst oul bass

iy Cash and cush equivalenis

Cash and cach equivalents in the balunce sheet comprise cash al banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or
lexs. which are subject 1o an insignificant ngk of changes in value

Far the purpasz of the stacement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shart-term deposits, s defined shove. net of oulsianding
bank everdrafis (including cush credit facilities) as they are considered an integral pan of the Company’s cash management Bank overdralts are shown
within borrowings in current habifities in the balance sheet

ki Non-current assets held for saleddisteibution o owners and discontinued sperations

The Company classifies non-curent assets and disposal proups as held For salo’distibution o owners oF their carrying amoumts will be recovered
principally through a salerdistribution rather than through continuing use Actions reguired to complete the sale/desinbution should indicate that i s
unlikely that sigmificant changes (o the sale/disiribution will be made or thar the decision to sell/distribute will be withdrawn and Management must be
commifted w the sale/disinbution being completed within one year from the date of classification

Nen-current assets held for sale/for distnbation (o owners and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carmving amount and the fur value less
costs 1o sellidistribute except [or assets such as deferred tax assels. assets arising from employes henefits. Anancial assets and contractual rights under
insurance contracts. whach are specifically exempt o s requirement Assots amd liabilines clascified s held for sale/distribution are presented
saparately in the balance sheet

An impaimment Joss is recognised for any imitial or subsequent write-down of the assct (or dispasal group) 1o fair value less costs o sell/disinbute. A gain
15 recogmised for any subssquent ncreases in fair value less costs 1 sell/ distnbute an asset (or @ disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recogmised A gain or foss not previously recognised by the date of sale’ distnbution of the non-current asset (or disposal
oroip) s recopnized on the date of derecagnition

Praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/distrbution to owners are not depreciated or amaorieal

A disposal group qualifies a8 discontinued operation 1f it i$ a component of an enhiy that sither has been disposed of, or 15 classi fied a5 held for sile, and
(1} Represents a separnte major line of business or geographical area of operations,

(i) 15 pan of a single coordinused plan o dispose of a separate major [in2 of business or geagraphical area of aperations, or

(111} 15 a subsidinry acquired exclusively with a view (D resale

Discontmued eperaiions are excluded from the results of contimung operahions mnd are presented as o sangle smount a5 profit or loss after my from
discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss
Al ather notes to the financial statements mainky include ameunts for continung operations. unless otherwise mentioned.

Iy Contributed Equiny
Equity shares arce classified a3 equity
Incremental osts directly attnbutable to the issue of new shares or options me shown i equity 25 a dedocton, net of s, from the poceeds

mj Trwde and Other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided 1o the Company prios to tha end of the financial vear which are unpaid The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and villier payables are presented ac current lisbilities unless payment 15 not due
within 12 months sfler the reporting period. They are recogmised imtially o their far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method

i Fair vilie mesissrement

The Company neconds certain financial assets and habilities 3 fair value on o recurring hasis. The Company determines faur valuz bised on the price it
would receive 1o sell an assel or pay to transfer 2 liability in an orderly transaction between market parnicipants 2l the measurement date and in the
principal or mast advantsgeous markel for that asset or hability

Fuir value hierarchy

Lavel | - Cuoted prices (unsdjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilites. Level | luerarchy mcludes fnancal instruments measured using
quoted prices. This meludes hsted equity instruments, bonds and debentures and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all
fnancial instruments which are traded in the siock exchanges is valued using the closing price as s the reparting penod.

Level 2« [nputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (1. 85 prices) o
indirectly (i e desived from prices) The fair value of financial imstrements that arc nol tmdad in an sctive murket is determined using
vatluation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as litle as passible on enuly specific estimates. [Fall
signifcant impts required 10 fair value an instrument are observable, the msirument & mclueded i level 2

Level 3= Inputs for the assets or liabilities thal are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). If one o mote of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market dam, the instrument 1s included in level 3 This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

In accordance with Ind-AS 113, assets mthﬂﬂ'yx?nm 10 be measured hised on the following valisation techniques,

= e B
Jo . OUN, 7
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(1] Market approach - Prices and other relevant informetion generated by markct transactions involving identical or comparable sssets o
liabil ivies.

ity Income approach — Converting the future amounts based on murkel expeciabons io s present value using the discounung methad

(1) Cost approach — Replscement cost method

o Provisions anil Contingent Liobilities

Frovisions

A provision 13 recogmaed when the Company has a present legal or a constructive obligation as 3 result of past event and it 15 probable thet an outllow
of resources will be required (o setile the obligation. mn respect of which a relizbls estimate can be made Provisions are recogmised for legal claims: amd
service warcanties. Provisions are nol recagmsed for future opersting losses.

Where there are a numbar of similar obligations, the likehhood that an oulflow will be required in setilement is determined by considering the cliss of
oﬁllg::iﬂ:::lu whale. A provision is recognised even ifthe likelibood of an outflow with respect 1o any one iem included in the same class of obligations
may e §

Provisions sre measurcd ol the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the present oblization at the end of the
reparting period The diseount rate used 1o determing the present value 15 the pre-mx rate thar reflects current market Assessments of the lime value of
money and the nsks specific to the labihly The increase in provision due 1o the passige of ume 14 recopnised 44 an inlerest expense.

Provisions are reviewed al each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the curent best estimales. In respect of lesses that are coversd by insurance
such losses are recognised as an expense when there is clear evidence or determmstion or probability that any portion of the loss s not expected 10 be
settled through insurance of other forms of recovery.

Asyer Reriremene Obligations (ARQ)

ARG are recogmsed for those operating lease armngements where the Company has an abligation an the end of the lease period to restore the leased
preatises i comdition similar to inceplion of lease ARC) are provided at the present value of expected costs to serle the obligation and are recognised
as part of the cost of that panticular asset and amontised or written down or deprecisted in the same manmer as the asset to which it penains. The estmated
future cosis of decommussioning are reviewed annually and any changes in the estimated luture costs or in the discount i applicd are adjusted from the
cost of the assel

Contingent Linbifitles

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there 15 a possible obligation ansing from past events, the exisience of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of non-gccurrence of one of more uncertun future events not wholly within the control ol the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where 1l is ¢ither not protable that an outflow of resources will he required 10 settle, or a reliable estimite of the amount cannot be made

Contingent ilabilities recogmised in a business combination

A conungent Habi ity recogrised in a husiness combinanon s initially measured a its fair value, Subsaquently, it s measured a1 the higher of the amount
that would be recogmised in secordance with ihe requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amartisahon recognised m accandance with the requirements for revense recogmition

pl Government graonis

Grants from the Covernment are recognised at thair fair value where there (3 a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received. and the Company will
enmply with all attached conditions.

Cipvernmend grants relating o income ane recogmesad 0 the profin o loss over the penod necessary w match them with the costs that they are intended to
eompensale

Grovernment grants refating o the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in ron-current labilives as deferred income and are shown s
reduction of expenses in profil or loss on a straight-hne hasis over the expected lives of related assets und presentes] within other income

) Revenue recagnition

Revenue is measared ut the Fur value of consideranion recerved or receivable. Amounis diselosed as revenue are net of retums, trade allowances, discounts,

rebales, deductions by customers, service tnx, value added tax, goods and services tax and amounts collected on behall of third parties.

Revenue 1% recognized 1o the exten) that it 15 probable (hat the econamic bonafits will flow 1o the Company and the revenee can be rehably mensured

Revenue 15 reengmized as follows

Revenue from serices

Represants the amounts recetvable for seraces rendered

(i} Faor non-contract-hased business, revenue represenis the value of goods dehvired or serices performed,

{1d For contract-based business, revenue represents the sales value of work carmed out for customers duning the penod  Such revenues are recognueed
in the perod in which the service 18 provided

{111] Unbultled revenuoe net of expected deductions 15 recogmsed at the end of each pennd  Such unbilled revenoe is reversed m the subsequent penod shen
petual invoice is rised

(v} Unemrned revenue represents revense billed but for which services have not yel been not vet been perfarmed and 15 mcluded under Advances (rom
customers. The same (s released ta the profit ind loss aceount as and when the services are rendered,

Sale af poods

Revenue from the sale of poods 13 recognised when significant nsks and rewards of ewnership of the goads have passed 1o the buyer, usually on delivery
of the goods: Revenus from the sale of goods 1s measured at thee fir value of the consideration received of receivable, net of retuins and allowances. rade
discounte and volume rebates Discounts and rebutes are estimated based on sccumilated expenence The Company recognizes nonmal warmanty
provisions far genesal repairs for one year on all its products sold, in line with the indasiry prachices. A liability is recognized at the time the product is
sold. Revenue (s deferred and recognized on a smght line basis over the extended wananty penod (n cose warmaniy 15 provided o customer for a pened
hevond one year

Remdering of services

In contracts involving the rendering of services, revenue is measured using the propariwnate complelion méthad when no significant uncenninty exists

regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from rendering the service When the contract swicome cannot be measurcd relmbly,

revenue 18 recognised only tn the extent that the expenses incurmed ane eligible o be recovered

Estimates of revenue, costs o extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulling increases or decreases in estimated

revenue of cous are reflectad in profit ordoss n the penod 1n which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the management
iy "
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Multipfe-glenent arramgemenrs

When a sales arangement contuns multiple clementy, sueh 15 services, material and mantenance, revenee for sach élement (s determined hased on
each clement’s fair value

Revenue recognition for delivered elements is limited 10 the zmount that s mot contingent on the futare delivery of produets or services, future
performance obligations or subject 18 customer-specified retum or refund privileges

The undiscounted cash flows from the amangement are periodically estimated and compared with the upamortized costs I the unemortized costs
excerd the undiscoonted cash Mow, a loss 15 recognined

Ierieresd income

Far all debt instruments measured either ot amortised cosl o at fair value theough other comprehensive incame, interest income 15 recorded using the
effective mierest rate (EIR). EIR 15 the rate that exactly discounis the estimabed future cash payments or receipts over the expecied life of the financial
mstrument of & shorier period, where appropriate, o the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or 10 the amontised cost of & Mnancial lability. When
calculatmg the effective interest rute, the Company astimates the expected cash Nows by considenng all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
{for example, prepavment, extension, call and similar options ) but does not consider the expecied credit losses Interest income 15 included in other income
in the statement of profil and loss

Dividends
Diividend income from investmants is recognised in profil or [pss as other income when the Company's right (o raceive payments 15 <stablished, it s
prohable that the sconomic benefits associmted with the dividend will Mow o the Company, ond the smount of the diadend can be measured relibly,

Rental income

Rental income arising from opemting leases on investment properties is sceounted for on 8 stradisht-line basts over the lease terms unless payments wre
structured to incrédse in line with the expecied general infiation o compensate for the lessors” expectad inflationary cost increase and is included
revenue mn the satement of profit or loss due to 11s operating nature,

r}  Forcign ewrreney trmnsiation

The Anancial staterents of the Company are presented in Indian Rupee [INR) whech 15 also the Company's funciional curvency, e | the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company opermzs

Transactions in foreign currencies are ininally recorded by the Company @t their respective funcional currency spot rates al the date the tmnsaction fiest
qualifies for recogmiion,

Monctary assets and liabilines denominated in foreign cumencies are transtated ot the funchional cumency spot rates of exchange al the reporting date.
Mifferences ansing on setthement o transiaton of monetny dems are recognised in profil or loss

Non-monztary items that are measured in Lemns of histarical cost in a foreign currency are baislaled using lhe exchange rates al the dates of the initl
ransactions. Non-monstary ilems measured o fair value in a forcign currency are transhated using the exchange rates ai the date when the fair value s
determined. The gaun or loss arising on translation of non-monetary jl2ms measured o0 fur value is meated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change 0 fur value of the item (Le., tanslation differences on tems whose fmr value gan or loss s recognised in OCH or profit or loss are also
recognised m OC] or profil or lass, respectively ).

5] Empleyec Benefils

Shori-rerm cbliganions

Liabilitizs for wages and salaries. including non-monetary benefits and compensated absences expectad to be settlad within twelve months after the end
of the period tn which the employees render the related service ane recognised in respect of employees' services up to reporting date and are measured at
the amounts expecied to be paid when the Labilities are scitled. The hability for compensated absonces 15 recognised in the provision for employee
benefits. All ather shon-term employee benelli obligmions are presenied ns other payables and acenmls

Honus
The Campany recognises a lability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractuully or legally obliged or where
there isa past practice that has created a constructive obligation,

Compensated abiences

The employees of the Company are entilled lo compensaled absences which we both accumulating and non-scumuksting i nature. The employees
can gany forward up 1o the specified portion of the unutilized sccumulated compensated absences and utilize it n future periods or receive cash at
retirement, The expected cost of sccumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valustion (using the projected umit credit methad)
based on the additional amoun! expected 1o be paid as 2 result of the unesed entitlement that has accumulated ot the balunce sheet date The
expense on non-accumulating compensated absences 15 recognized in the stakement ol profit and boss 1n thee year in which the absences ocour Azl
ganins ¢ losses are immediately taken 1o the statement of profit and loss end are not deferred

In respect of those emplovees who are entitled to on encashment of the leave at the end of every calendar year, & provision is created (0 aocount for the
Liabdlity,

The ﬁimm are presented as current hailities in the balance sheets if the entity does not have an unconditional right 1o defer sendement for at least
twelve months after the reparting date, regardless of when the actual senlement is expected 10 pecur

Porst-empleymeni uhlfgetions

The Company operates the following post-employment schemaes:

i) Dicfined contribution plans such as provident fund and employees' state insurance, and
(n} Defined benefin plans such as gratuity

Defined Contribution Plun

The Company contribules on a delined contribution basis for ehigible emplovess, to Employes's Provident Fund, Emplovess” Pension Scheme and
Employees’ State Insurance Schemie owards post-employment benefits, all of which are administered by the respactive Governmenl suthores and has
n0 further obligation beyood making (15 comribution which is expecied in the year i which if pertwns. The contribulions are accounted for as defined
conlribution plans and the contributions are reepgnised-as employee benefit expense when they are due Prepaid contribunions are recognised as an asset
to the cxtent that a cash refund of a reduction’in.the future payments is avarlable
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Deflned Bewefit Plan

The Company has a defined benefit plan, sz, Gratuity, for all its emplovees, the lability for which is acerued and provided for as determined by an
independent actuanal valuation. A portion of this liability for gratuity 15 contributed 16 8 fund administered and operated by a reputed insumnce company
The liability or assel recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans s the present value of the defined benefit obligation at tha and of the
feporting period ess {he fur value of plan ussets. The defined benefit (s actuarially determined (using the projected umt credit method) af the end of cach
year,

Fresent value of the defined henefit obligation is determined by discounting the ¢stimated future cash outllows by reference Lo marked yields at the end
of the reporting periods on govermment bonds that have terms spproximating 1o the terms of the related obligation

The net interest 15 calculated by applying the discount rate 10 the net bakance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets This cost
1 included in the employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss

Past service cosis are recognised in prodin or loss on the earher of

(iF The date of the plan amendment or curts iment, and

(i} The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

The Company recogmises (b2 fllowing changes in the net defined hanefit obligation s an cxpense in the statement of profit and loss

(1h  Service costs compnsing cumment service costs, past-service costs, gauns and losses on curtm|ments and non-routine setilements: and

(1) Mel interest expense or incoma

Remeasurements, compnasing of sciuanal gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding smounts mcluded in net interest on the net defined
bemefit liabnlily and the retwm on plan assets (excluding amounis included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability ), are recognised immediately
in the halance sheet with a corresponding debil or credit b retained carnings through othet comprehensive income in the perind in which ihey accur
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsaquent periods

1 Cash sertled stoek-based compensation

Empluyess of the Company recove share-based compensation in the form of parent compainy's share options The cost of cash-settled transactions is
mizasured intially ab fair value at the grant date based on a debit note received from the parent company This fair valus is expensed over the period unul
the vesting date with recagnition of a correspanding liability 1o the parent company

up Borrowing costs

Bomowing costs include smerest calculated on the effective interest rate method basis, and exchange differcnees ansing from foreign cunency borrowings
1o the extent that they are regerded as an adjustment to the interest cost General and specific barrawing costs directly sinbutable 1 the acquisition,
construction of production of qualifang assets, which are assels that necessanly take a substaniid period of time fo get ready for their intended wse or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale All other borrawing costs are
expensed in the period in which they sre incurred

¥ Leascs

The delerminalion of whether an armingement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of Ihe arangement at the mcepbion of the lzase. The

arrangement i<, of containg, a lease if Ful ilment of the armungement 15 dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys &

right to use the asset or assels, even if that nght 1s nol explicitly specified in an arangement

For amangements entzred into prior to April 1, 2016, the Compony has determined whether the arrangement contains bease on the basis of facts and

crrcumstances cxisting on the date of transition

Company ai a lesiee

A lease 15 classified ot the inception date as o finance lease or an operating lease A lease thal transfers substantially all the nisks and rewwrds imcidental

o ownership (o the Company 15 classified a5 a finunce lease

(i} Opernfing leoses
Leases in which o sipnificant pertion of the risks and rewards of awnership ure retained by the lessor arc clossified as operating leases Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives recerved from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a strmght-line basis
over the period of the lease unless payments are structured to imcreaze i line with the expected general flation 1o compensate for the lessors’
expected inflationary cost increase

(i) Finamce leases
Leases where ihe lessor has passed substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership wre classified as finance leases. Finance leases nre capitalised
at the inception of the lease ol the lower of the i value of the leased asser and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or ather financial finbilities as approprinte. The outstanding linbdlity 13 included
in other correnl’ noa-current bomowings
Each lease payment is apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the oulstanding hability The lmonce charge s charged o the
Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period 50 as 1o produce a constant perindic rate of interast on the remaining balance of the hability for

each penod.

Conripasy a5 o fessar

Leases i which the Company does not transfer subrstantially all the risks and rewands of ownerstup of an assel are classified as operating leases Renil
income from eperating bease is iecopnised on a straghi-line bagis over the tevm of the relevant lease unless payments are structuwred 1o increase in line
with (e expected general inflation o compensate for the sxpecied infationary cost increase  [nitiad direct costs incurred in nepoliating Gnd aransing an
operating lease are added 10 the carrying amoum of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same hasis as rental incame Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. The respective leased assets are included in the balunce sheet hased on their natuse!
Leases are ¢lassified o5 finance leases when substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company 1o the lessee Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recotded a3 recetvables ui the Company™s net (nvestment 1 the leases Finance least income 15 allocated 1o
socounting periods so os to reflect a constam penodic rate of retumn on the net investment oulsianding 0 respect of the leise

wi Impalrment of nen-fnanelal pssets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefimite useful hife are not subject 1o amortisation and are tested annually for impai rment, or more frequently
if events or changes in cicomsiances indicaie that they might be impaired. Chber assers wre tesied for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstomces indicaii thit the carrying amount miy not be recoverible. An impainment [oss is recognised o (he amount by which the mset’s carmving
amoumt exceeds its recovershle pmount. The recovernble amount is the higher of its lar value less cost of disposal and its value-in-use  Value-in-use 15
the present value of future cesh Nlows expecied to be denved from the assel. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped a1 the lowest
levels for which there are separmicly identifiable cash fows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets o group of assets (cash-
generating units or CGL Imtm%m%!h@vhs amcunt ofaCGL including the good will excesds the estimated recoverable amount of the
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CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill scquired in a business combinaton is allocited 1o the Company's COiUs expected (o benefit
from the synergies ansing From the business combinanon, Total impairment Joss of a CGL 15 allecated first 1o reduce the carrying amount af gondwill
allocared (o the CGLU and then 1o the other assets of the CGLUL pro-riti on the basis of the carrving amaunt of each asset in the CGU An mnpanrmient loss
on goodwill recognized i the statement of profitand loss is not reversed in the subsequent period. Non- financial asses pther than gondwill that suffencd
an impaurment are revicwed for posable reverail of impairment ot the end of 2ach reporting period

s Earnings per Share

Basic eamings per sharc are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period atmbutabie to equity shareholders of the Com (afier deducn
preference dividends and attnbutable taxes) by the weighted average number of eguity shires outstanding during the penod ( Note g;? ; i
Panly paud equity shares are treated o5 a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to paricipate in dividends relative 10 3 fully paid
equity share during the reporting period  The weighted average number of equity thares outstanding dunng the penod s adjusied for events of bonus
issue; honus element in a nights issue 10 existing sharcholders, share spht. and reverse share split (consolidation of shares)

Dnluted Earnings per share amounts are computed by dividing the net profit sitnibutable 1 the equity holders of the Company {after deducting prefesence
dividends and atiributable tmxes but afler adjusting the after income tax effect of interest and other financing cost associated with dilutive P lenlial
equity shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for denving basic eamings per share and also the weighted average number
of equity shures that could have been issusd upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are sdjusted for
the proceeds recevable had the shares been acally isued at fuir value (ie the average market value of the outstanding shares) Dilutive potential
cquity shares are deemed converted as at the begimning of the year, unless ssued an o later date, Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for zach year presented

¥ Cash dividend and son-cash distrilition w eguity holilers of the Company

The Company recognises o linbility to make cash or non-cash distributions o equily holders of the Company when the distribution is suthorised and the
distribution 15 no longer at the discretion of the Company, A cormespanding amount is recognised directly in equity

Non-cash disirhuiions are measured at the carrying value of the asseis 1o be distnbuted in case of distribations in which all ewners of the same class of
equity instruments are treated equally or the disinbuted asset is uiumately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the disiribution,
and at Gair value of the sssets (0 be distributed in other cases, with such value recognised directly in equity For this purpose. i goup of individuals shall
be regarded as controlling an entity when, os a result of contractunl srmngements, they collectively have the power ta govern its financial and operating
policies 50 as 1 obtain benefits from its activities, and that ullimate callestive power 15 not transitory . Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference
between the carrying amount of the lishility and the carrving amount of the assets distrbuted 15 recognised in the siatement of profit and loss or directly
in the equity g5 approved by the Natonal Company Law Tribunal / applicable regulatory ar other authority

71 Cash Flow Stwtemint

Cash flows are reported usng the mdirect method, whereby profit for the penod s ndjusted for the effects of ransactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or fulure operaling cash receipls of payments and ilem of mcome or expenses associnied with investing or fnancing cash
Nows: The eash Nows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segrepated

nn) Recently issued pecounting pronsuncements

Appendix B 1o lnd AS 21, Foreign curremcy (ransactions and sdvance considerstion. On March 28, 2018, MCA has notitied the Companies { ndian

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2013 contaming Appendix B o Ind A% 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration which

clanfies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on instial recogmition of the related assel, expense of income,

when an entity has recerved or pad advance consideration in a foreign currency

This amendment will come into force from Apnl 1, 200 8. The Company has evaluated the effect of this on the nancial siatements and the impact is not

Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers. On March 28, 2018, Mimstry of Corporate Alfairs has nonficd the Ind AS 115, Revenue from

Coniract with Customers. The core principle of the new standard 15 that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goeds or

SETVices 1o customers in an amount that reflects the considerstion 1o which the entity expects 10 be entitled in exchange for those poods or services. Furiher

thie new standurd requires enhanced disclasurcs abou the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash Mlows ansing from the entity's

conlracts with customers

Along with the issuance of Ind AS |15, Revenue from contract with customers, the Mimstry of Company Affairs has also notified conseguentl

amendrments 10 vanous other Indian Accounting Standards

The standwd permuits two possible methods of ansition

(i) Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to esch pnor reporting penod presenied in sccordance with
Ind AS 8. Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Frrors

(i) Retrospectively with cumulanve effect of initally applying the standard recognized w the date of ininal application (Cumalstive eatch - up approach .

The effective date for adopiion of Ind AS | 15 is financial penods beginning on o dfter Apnil |, 2018

The Company will adopt the standard on April |, 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up transition methed and sccordingly comparatives for the year

ending or ended March 31, 2018 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The effiect on adoption of Ind AS 115 and consequentinl amendments o various

other Indian Accountng Standards 15 not expected o be matenal

Ind AS 12, Income Taxes: |he amendments ¢lanfy the requirement for recognizmg deferred tax assets on unrealized losses on debt insiruments that are

measured o Fuir value The amendment also clarifies certain nther aspects of accounting for deferred tax assets The changes will not have amy material

impact on the finoncial statemens of the Company

Ind AS 40, [nvestment Property On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has netified amendments w lnd AS 40, Investment Property The

amendments relate 1o clarifications in respect of transfer of a property 10, or from, investment property, apar from other changes consequennal o

nitiflcanion of Ind AS 115, revenue from comtracts with Customers.

“Ind AS 28, Investments in Assoctates and Joinl Yemtures: Un March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporide Affairs hes notified amendmenis to Ind AS 28,

Investments in Associates ond Joint Ventures The amendment clarifies sccounting oplsans in financial statements of a venture eapitnl or similar entity

ond investment emtity  These amendments sre not applicable mancial statements of the Company

This amendment will come inlo force from Apnil 12018 The Company has evaludted the effect of this on the financial statements and the imipact 15 not

malerial. 5 s
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i Significunt necounting judgements, sstimates and assumptions

Use of extimares and fudgment

The pecparation of the financinl siniements in conformity with Ind-A% reguires management o moke judgments, estimates and assumpiions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reponted amounts of assets, lizbilines. income and expenses and other comprehensive income (OC[) that
mre reported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanving notes,

Estimales and underlying assumpuions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical expenience und other factors including expectaions
of future events thal may have a lnancial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions 10 accounling
astimates ane recornized in the period in which the astimaes are revizad and in any funare periods aifected

In the pracess of applving the Company’s secounting polieies, management has madc various judgements, which have the most sgnifieant effeel on the
amounts recognised i the financial sements

This note provides an overview of the aréas that mvelved a higher degree of judgement or complexily, and of items wihech are mose likely o be matenally
adjusted due to estimates and assumpoions tuming out 1o be different than those originally assessed. Dewilad information sbout each of thase estimates
and jud pements is included in refevant notes together with information abowt the basis of calculation for each affected ing wem in the financial statements
Critienl estimates and judgements

The areas involving critical estmates or § ara:

(1) Estimanon of curren! my expense and pavable - Noe 8

{uh Estmated useful life ol mtangible assets — Note 2(d)

(i1) Estimotion of defined benefit obligntion - Mote 20

{1%) Recognition of deferred tux assets for camied forward of lax lesses — Mote §

{v) Impairment of rade receivables Note 35

(1) Classification of leases as opernting leases or finance leases- Mote 2 3iv)

{vin)Whether assets held for distnbution 10 owners meet the defimnon ol disconnnued operations- Nowe 2 3ik)

The Company assesses imparment at cach reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company thai may lead 1o imparment of assets, Where
an impurment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assecsing recoverable amounts
incorporate a number of key estimates. There are no reasonable foresceable changes in these key catimates which would have caused an imparment of
these assefs.

Sharre—barsed popments

Estimating Fair valug for share-hased payment transactions requires determination of the most appropraste valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditons of the grant. This csimane also requires determisation of the most appropniate inputs 10 the valuabion mode| includng the expectad
life of the share eption, volitliny and dividend yield and making assurmptions aboul them

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recogmised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that wxalde profit will be available agzinst which the fosses can
bt unilised. Significant management judgement is required 1o determine the amount ol deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the hkely
timing and the level of future taxable profits tagether with future tax planning strategies Reger Mot Ma 4

Defined benefit plans (gramisy benefirs)

The cost of the defined benelit geatuity plin and other post-cmployment benefits and the present value of the gratuty obligation are determined using
actuarial vilustions An actuanial valuation invalves making vanous assumptions that may differ from actual developmenis in the future These include
thee determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and momality rates. Due w the complexities invelved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a delived benelit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions arc reviewed ot cach reporting date

The morality rate is based on publicly available morality tables Those morality bles tend 1w ehinge only st interval in résponse to demographic
changes Fumure salary increases, and gratuity incresses are based on expecied future milaton rates. Hefer Noie Vo 26

Fair vadue measurement af financial fnttramenis

When the fair values of financial 2sscts and financial linbilites recorded in the balance sheet cunnot be measured hased on quoted poces m active markets.
their fair value is mexsured using valuation lechmgues including the Discounted Cash Flows model The inputs 1o these models are taken from observable
markels where possible. but where this s not feasible, a dewree of judgement is required in establishing fair valies Judgements include considerations
of inpats such &s hquidity risk. credit risk and velatility. Changes in assumphions about these factors could alfect the reported fuir value of linancial
instruments.

Huramgible asved wnder develapmenl

The Company capitalises development costs for a project m sccordance with the accounting policy Tnitial capitalisation of vosts is based on management's
judgement that 1=chnological and economic feasibility i confirmed. In determining the amounts o be capitalised, management makes assumptions
regarding the expected fuure cash generation of the project, discount rles 1o be applied and the expected period of benefits
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4. Property, plant aod equipment

Year ended March 11, 3017
Giross Biock Depreciation Net Book Value
Asatl Additions | Sale and Asat Upto For | Saleand Up o As &t March 31
Description of Asseis April 1, during | sdjustm | March March the | adjustm | March 2017 2
20164 the year ents 31,2007 | 3, 2006 | year enls 31, 27
Plant & Maochinery 5833 i1.32 - 92.15 - | 1495 - 14.75 77.40
Furniture & Froure 6.28 0.21 = 549 - 2.15 - 2.15 4.34
Vehicles 1.21 2.60 381 = 1.01 = 101 .80
Oifice Lquipment 017 D.BL nag - 0.20 - .20 078
Compuler Bquipment 038 1.06 - 194 - 1.05 - 105 0.89
Taotal 67.37 35.00 = 10537 - | 18.16 - 19.16 86.21
Crand Total 6737 38,00 - 10537 = | 19.16 - 19.16 Bi.21
“Dieemed cost bang earrying vilue of property, plant and equipment measured as per previous GAAF
Yeur ended March 31, 2018
Cross Rlock Depreciation Net Book Value
Ay at Additions | Sale and As ut Lip tin For Sile and Up i
Déveription of Ascts April | during | adjustm | March March | adjustin Maren | A0 ;‘;:’" s
1, 2007 | the year enis 3, 2018 | 3, 2007 | year enis A1, 28
Plant & Machinery 92.15 10.39 = 102 56 1475 1483 . 2953 7i2.97
Furnibure & Fixture 645 125 - LM 215 1.30 - 3.43 439
Viehicles 3.80 077 . 457 1.0 0.87 1.88 .69
CHlee Equipmient 0.98 203 = 3.01 0.20 0,66 0.85 218
Compuler Equipment 194 185 - 579 105 140 145 334
Total 105,57 18.29 - 123,67 19.16 | 19.06 . 3812 B5.44
Grand Total 105.37 1829 124,66 19.16 | 19.06 - fL ] B5.44
{11 Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security
Refer wo Note 16 for infarmation on property, plant and equipment pledged as secunty by the Company
A Intangible pssets
Year ended March 31, 2007
Description of Assets Grross Block Amortisation Net Baok Value
Asal Additions | Sale and Asul Upia Far | Saleand Asat As al March 31,
April I, during ad justm March March the | adjusim March 2017
2016 the year enis 31,2017 | 31,2006 | vear ents 31, 27
Compuier Software ** - ale - Q16 = | DD& - .06 010
Orther intangible assets- 2574 . . 2574 - 1 98 . R 2376
Licensed Franchise
Crand Total 15T N3 1500 .04 W 13,86
Yeir ended March 31, 2014
Deseription of Assets Gross Block Amortisation Net Book Yalue
Asat | Additions | Sale and Asat Upto For | Sale and As al As at March 31,
April during nd justm Murch Muarch the | adjustm | March 018
1, 2017 the year enis 31,2018 | 31,2017 | vear enls 1, MnE
Computer Software ** 06 [L-E) - O RS .06 0.22 - 028 057
Orther mtangihle assets- 2574 . . 3574 1.98 198 - s 2178
License& Franchise
Grand Toial 1590 06 | - 26,50 204 | 220 - 424 2135
* Deemed cost being carmying value of intangible assels measured as per Previous GAAP
** Computer sofivare consists of putchised soltware
6. Investiments
Particulirs March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 1, 3016
Non-current investments
Investments in Equity Instruments
Investment in Subsidiarics
Unguoted equity shares (fully paid)
Mil (March 31, 2007 N, April 1, 2006 92,1000 equty sharey - - 12500
in Sunrays Overséas Private Limited of INR 106 each Tully
e up®
Nil (March 31, 2017 Nil, April 1 2016 39,7700 equity shares - 125 0
in Vardan Overseas Private Limited of INR 10/~ each fully
paid up*
Tatal Investment in Subsidiaries g = - = 35000

Investment in mssocinles
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L tedl eguity shares { fully paid)

1919804 (March 31, 2017 19192804, Apnl 1, 2014

1,919 804 ) oguity shares in 815 Cash Services Privale Lamited 492 66 491 56 407 66
af INR 10/~ each fully pad up

Tolal Investment in Assoeiates = 492,66 49266 491.66
Tnviestment in joini ventures 2

Unguoied equity shares (fully paid)

11,000,000 (March 31, 2007 11000000, Apnl 1, 2016

11,000 000 equity shores in SES Prosegur Alorm Monitoring

and Respanse Services Frivare |imited of INR 10~ each fuly L b Lo
paid up

Total Investment in Joint Ventures 1 10,00 1 10.00 1100
Total Invesiment in Associates and Joini veniures UL 602 66 GGG
Investiment in equity component af Optionally eonvertible 140 =

debentures in Termenia SIS India Py Lud

Total investment in Equity instruments 605,25 G266 452,66
Investments in debentures or bonids

MNon-Currend [nvestments (gl cost) - Investments in Non 167,00 147.00 .
Convertible Debentures issued by 515 Cash [ndin Pyt Lid ) )

Investments in Ophionally Convertible Debenitures issued by 5373 : -
Terminix SIS Indin Private Limited

Investmenis in debentures or bonds 149.73 147,00 -
Total non-current investmenis B54.98 749.66 85166
Agereeme book value of unquoted investmenis Hha N 149 66 851 66
Aggregate amount of impairment in valug of mvestments

Curreni invesimenis - - -
Total investments HA458 T49.66 85166

* Refer Note No, 13 regarding Demerper of cortun business including investments

Aggregnie deemed cost of thase investments for which deemead cost as at Apal 1, 2006 is their Frevious GAAF carrying amount is INR 852:66 mallion.
Elfective May 19, 2016, the Company has acquired 100% of the outstanding cquity sharcs of Lotus Learming Private Limited for an aggrogate
consideration of MR 80 million. Lotus Learning Private Limited owns only o vacant property and has no other business

7. Other Nnancial 85¢1s

Particuls rs March 31, 3018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Other non-current nancial assets
Secunity Depoals 30.77 18.51 1572
Loans to reloted pacties (unsecured, considered good ) 18108 16-80
Prepaid expenses FE - -
Tatal Other non-current Ninanckal assets 49,04 3531 15.72
{ither current Nnancinl assets
Linbilled revenue 337,28 11713 105 63
Interest necrued on invesiments 37.05 743 0
Interest accrued on de posits 047 129 il
Total Other current financial assets 254.40 124.85 105,63
H, Income tax
The major compenents of mcome ax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 3|, 200 7 are
Statement of profid and lovs:
Prafit or loss sectlon:
Particulars Muarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2007
Lrmend income T
Curenl income tax churge 838 =
Adjustments (n respect of Current ineome 1ax of previous year 451
Defereid e
Dacrease (incresse ) in deforred tax assets A& {6 49)
(Decreaze) increase i deferred wx [iabilitnes
Income tax expense reporied in the statement of profit or loss 21.49 (6.49)
QCT section:
Tar related to itens recognived in OCH during in the vear:
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 207
Met loss/min ) on remeasurements of defined benefil plans {1.04) 024
Income tax charged o (41 {1.04) 034
Reconcilliaton af tay expense and the acoaniing profit multiplicd by the tox rate for March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2008
Pagticulars March 31. 2018 March 31, 2017
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Accounting profit before income tax 4101 18,24
Al the statutory income tax rate of 313 06% (March 31, 2017 30 90%) 1356 564
Adjustments im respeci of curmend ncome s of previous vears 4.31 -
Chanze in upphicable iy mie for defermed @y assets and linbilites 217 (3.57)
Litilisation of previous|y unrecognised ax lesses 1o reduce curment WX expense 16:38) (8 59)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:

TDS [merest a0 0,03
Diher non-deductible expenses. 354 -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 2149 (.49}

The applicable stshitory s mle of the Company For financaal year ended March 11, 2017 J0.90% and March 31, 2018 is 33:.06%. The Union Budget
218 has decreased the tax rate and the effective tax mte applicable to the Company for the fnancial vear 2008-19 would be 27.82%

The balance in deferred tay avses (liahilines) comprises temporary differences arvibanble 1o
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 20017 April 1, 206
Property, plant and equipment and invesiment property (1 05) {2 32} _[3.54)
Diefined benehil obligations 6.4% 592 195
Accruals and other 352 309 005
Business 105 0 1764 17.62
Minimam Aliemative Tax (MAT) eredit Emitlement 566 - -
Total deferred tas asscts (Labilities) 14,69 24.33 18,08
Reflecred L the balance sheer as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April L, 2016
Dieferred 1ax ascets 14 &4 3433 IR08
D ferred tax hahilines - - -
Deferred tax assets{liabilitics), net 14.69 2,33 1 K08
Recancilfation of deferred tex avrets (llabifities), mer: P ——
Property, plant Defined .‘H]limu.l
and equipiment Intangible Benelit Accruals | Business | Allernative Tax Total
and investment | nuscls and ather loyss (MAT) eredit
property | oibliga Howa Eniitlement
As at April 1,2016 325 | 305 [ 17.62 : 1848
Tax mcomeiex ) dunng the -
it oy prolit D:’*.Igg 12 230 305 002 649
Tax incomei expense ) dunng the - (0 24) (0.24)
period recoenised in OC1 g ]
As it Maech 31, 2007 (23 E 592 .09 17.64 24.33
Fax WI‘-‘“"::':“;':ET'E:L‘; 177 | : 1.57 041 | (s 566 | (860)
Tax incomeiexpense ) dunng the . - (1.04) . - (1 04)
period recognised in OC1 |
As at March 31, 2018 (1.0%) | B 182 0.11 566 | 1469
Note: There are no unrecopmized s losses
dncome inx aysers:
Partheulirs March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening balance 5540 34 86
Add Taxes deducted by customers and others 44 56 3213
Less Tax Refund (20631 (11.59)
Less Curment tax payable for the year (12 8y =
Current tay Assets Hfi. 44 5540

The Company ofTeets tax assets and lubilities 17 and only if 1t has o legally enforceable rnpht 1o set off current tx pssets and carrent tax lishilitics and the
deferred tax assers and deforred tix liabilities relate (o income taces levied by the sume tax authority

Y. AMher Assets

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Other non-current assets
Other advances-long term margin money 369 -
Fotal Uibher non-curreni asseis - 3.69
Diher current assels
Advances to related miries - 28.74 -
Othier lnans and advances (Deposits with Suppliers) ST 44 46 69 44 37
Others Debtors and prepayvments 188 0.75 037
Prepmd expenscs 0.7 197 oy
Service Tax VAT/GST secoverable 312 038 118
Total other current ausels — £2 71 7853 4599
Total Other Asséts ' 62,71 SL12 4599
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L Invenivries

Particulars March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007 April 1, 2016
i fomms .14 RE 118
:lnll:: imvemtories ot the lower of cost and nel realisable L4 LI9 .18
MNone of the inventones are carned at net realisable value as ot March 31, 2018 and March 31, X017
L1, Trade receivabies
Purticulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2M7 April 1. 2006
Trade Racaivables 4% 12 |98 48 143.52
Total trade receivables IRL12 198. 48 14352
Break-up of secority detuils:
Parficulars March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007 April 1, 20016
Secured, consiered good - - - -
Unsecured. considerad good 2812 |98 48 143.52
Unsacured, conmderad doubfol - - 5,06
Total 18212 198, 48 148,58
Provision for impainment - = {5.06)
Towml Trade receivables ML12 198,48 143.52

Mo trade or other recéivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company @ither sevarally or jomnthy with any other person and from firms o
private compames respectively in which any director 13 a partner, a director or a member

Refler note 35 for the Company's policy regarding impaimient allowance on trade receivables

For terms and condibons relating 1o related porty recenvables, refer Mok 34

12, Cash and bank halances

Cash and carh eguivalenss
Particulirs March 31, 2018 March A1, 2007 April 1, 2016
Balances with banks:
— Ul currend accounts 39.65 1148 35819
Cash on hand 0.12 033 040
39 86 228 35K 60

Cash-in-hand and bank halances ving in various cument socounts bear no interes)
There ure no repatnaiion restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as al the end of reporting penod and pnor penods

{hher baek baloaces
Fll'&u_l._l.rl March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 April 1, 2016
Deposits with remaining matunty of more than 3 months bt
it b5 13 Vi 6,493 n 373
Dividend account - . =
Tatal 6,93 179 373

* In¢ludes deposits held as Margin money by banks of [NE 5 01 mulbon (March 31, 2007 INR L4 millon, Apnl 1, 2006 INE 2 54 mulhon

Specified Bank Noves (SENw

Duynng the véar ended March 31, 2017, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomingtion note as defined in the MCA noufication G SR
I0R(E) chwved March 30, 2017 on the dewmils of Specified Rank Notes [SHN) held and 1ransacted during the period from November 8. 2016 1o Diecember
31, 2016 The detmbsof SANs and other notes is per the notification 15 given below

Particulars SRNs Diher dens mination noles Toial
Clesing eash in hand as on November 8 2016 016 1.4 0.20
Add: Permuned receipts 3 (1,60 0 60
Less Permillied payments - = =
Liess: Amouni deposted in Banks 016 026 043
Closing cash inm hand ason December 30, 2016 - 38 038

For the purposes of this classe, the term “Specified Bank Notes™ shall have the same meaning as provided 1n the notificaton of the Government of India,

in the Minisiry of Finance, Department of Economic afTairs aumber 5.0 WONE), dated November B, 2016

13, Demierger of eertain husiness amd non-cash assdls
Demerging Business:
The Honoursble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata has vide its order dated December 22, 2017 spproved a composite scheme of arrangement
under seetions 391 1o 354 of the Companies Act, 1556 between the Company, Service Master Clean Limited (“SM™), 515 Asset Management Private
Limited (formerly known as Tech SIS Aecess Management System Privatc Limited) and their respective sharcholders and creditors (“Demerger
Scheme”) The Demetger Scheme provides for the demerger, transfer and vesting of
(a) the consultancy and investigation business of the Company. meluding all related assets, properties, identified investments (direct, or through
nominges), hiabilities and provisions, employees. business contracts and movable and immovable properties, as well as cortain compulsarily converiible
shares aliotted or deemed 1o be allotted purswant 1o the Demerger Scheme (SIS Demerging Business™), and
(b) the payrell outsourcing business of SMC, including all related assets, properties, identified investments (direen, ot through naninees), liabilities and
provisions, employees. business contracts and movable and immavable prapesties (“SMC Demerging Business™) 10 575 Asset Management Private
Limited, on 2 going concemn basis {such transaction, the "Proposed Demerger™
Revenues from the SMC Demerging Business sccounted for INR 3,36 million (March 31, 2017 INR |4 64 million)
Some of the key terms of the Bemerger Schema are 05 ol lows:

(1} The Demerger Scheme provades focthe fransler of the Demerging Businesses 1o 515 Assct Management Private Limited, for Consideration

{defined hereinafter) and "."i"?,‘h@’"“" ﬂn‘{h seclioh 20 I9AA) of the Income Tux Act The Demerger Scheme has been drawn up 1o comply
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with the conditions reloting 1o a demerger under section X 1 9AA ) of the Income Tax Act, and of foand wcoms stent with this sechon, shall
stand modified o the extent required for compliance
{it) The “Appointed Date” for the Demerper Schems is July 1, 2016
{iif} ‘The Demerger Scheme, inter sha, provides for, in consideration for the mnasfer of the Domerging Businesses, the issuance by SIS Asset
Management Priviate Limited of (3) 43,070,000 fully paid-up compalsorily convertible preference shares of INR 10 zach (“CCPS™)
proporionately for every 19,512,800 equity shues of INR 10 each of SMC held by sharcholders of 3MC on the Appointed Date, and (b)
16,520,000 equity shares of INR 10 zach of SIS Asset Monagement Private Limited for every 6,202,652 Equity Shares held by shercholders
of our Company on the Appomted Dute (“Consideration”™). Any CCPS alloned, or deemed (o be alloded o the Parent (on sccount of the
Parent being a sharcholder of SMC) as consideration for trnsfer of the SMC Demerging Business would stand cancelled.
{iv) The difference between the book values of the asseis and labilities transferred and vested in S18 Asset Management Company Private
Limmi el shanll be adjusted gamst the shire premium account of respective demery mg compan)es.
Upon the Demerzer Scherme becoming effective on January |3, 2018 (being the dase of filing of the order of the honourable National Company Law
Tribunal, Kolkata with the Registrar of Companies, Patna), sixteen immovakle propenics awned by the Company and three investments swnad by
SMC “Demanged Properties™) seand rransferred o, and vested with, SIS Assen Management Privare Limited

Tihe mer financial impact of tre Demerger Scheme on the Company is as foilows:

Purticulars Amuunts trinsferred Assets classified as
pursumnt (o the demerger | held for distribotion
o shareholders as at
March 31, 2017

Assets
[mwestment in Sunrovs Oversens Private | imited (Refer Note 6} 125 00 | 2500
Investment in Vardan Overseas Private Limited (Refer Noie.6) 125 00 125.00
Invesiment in Loms Leaming Private Limited (Refer Noie é) 1631 97 163,97
Drebtors & TS receivable 0.13 -
Total Assets 414.10 41357
Linbalites = = .
Total Linbilities = 5
Miet Assets transferred _ = === 414 10 41397
Amount debied 1o securiiies premium account 414 10 41397

Since the Demerger Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company prvor to March 31, 2017, the asscts and lishilites to be demerged
have béen shown as Assets Held for distnbution to shareholdars pursuan; to demergar m the balance sheet os ar March 31, 2017

14 Equity Share eapital

Authorized shre capital
Equity shares of INK 10 cach autborized (Mo, in million) (INE million)
Al April 1, 2006 20,00 2000000
Inerease/{deerease) dunng the vear - :
At March 31, 2007 20,00 20100
Inerease’{ decrease) during the year - -
At March 31, 2018 20,00 2L

fesued equity capital

_E!l.lll! shares of INR 10 each lssued (Mo, inmillion) (INH million)
At April 1, 2016 19.51 19513
Crher 1ssue of shares - -
At Mirch 31, 2007 1951 195.13
Onher 1ssue of shares - -
Al March 31, 2018 19.51 195.13

Subscribed and paid np
Equity shares of INR 10 each subseribed and fully paid (N, in o flon ) (INH million)
Subscribed share capiial as at April 1, 2016 19.51 195,13
lszue of shares = :
At Murch 31,2017 19.51 195,13
[ssue of shanes . =
At March 31, 2018 19.51 195,13

Termu/righis artached 1o equity sdares

The Company has anly ane eliss of equity shares having par value of TR [0 per share Each bolder of equity shares 15 entitled to one vole per share and
to parbcipate in dividends m proportion o the number of and amounts paid on the shares held  The Company declares and pavs dividends (n Indun
TURES

[ the avent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of squity shares will be entitied 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distrbution of
all preferential amounts The distribution will be in proporton to the member of equity shores hold by the shancholders

Shares hedd by boldingficltimate bolding company amdfor ther subsidioriexassoctales
thl‘:'ui the equity shures issued by the Company. shares held by its holding company. ultimate holding company and their subsidisrissiassociated are as
helow

Particulars Miireh 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 April 1, 2016

Security and Imelligence Services (Indm) Limited. Parent 1131 ISt L L5
LS malhon (March 31, 2007 11 51 m||l|5|:|.,m‘|._j ]E!Ib
11.5] m|IImJaqu|w*hnr:4 . Y
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S15 Group International Holdings Py Limuted R.00 X 800
.00 million (March 31, 2007 & 00 millian, Apnl |, 2016
& 00 mallion) equily whres
Drevanils of shareholders holdimg more than 3% siarey in the Company
Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 Asat April 1. 2016
New an N holefing Nev an e fperluling New, i M Pl
million | n e class millparn | omthe closs | milton | oihe class
Secunty & Inlellizence Services { India) Limibed 1151 59,00 L1:51 59.00 1151 549 (W)
SI8 Group Imernational Holdings Poy Limited & 00 4100 8.00 A1 0 5040 Al.00
15, Ovher eguity
Purticulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 April I, 2(H6
Reserves and Surplus
Equity eentribution by parem 1.81 150 0.07
Securitics premium reserve 937 50 1.351 60 1,351 60
Retamed eamings 852 [ 13.69) (38 94}
Total reserves and suplus M7.43 1340, 50 1 312.73
Other Reserves 3 * =
Totnl Other Equity 347,83 1.340.50 131273 |
Equriry contribution by parent
M April 1, 2016 0.07
Add Finoncinl guaranice issued by parent for the Company 1.52
At March 31, 27 .59
Add: Financial guaranies issued by parent for the Compuny (0. T8}
At March 31, 2B 1.81
Securities Preminm Reserve
At Apnl 1, 2014 1,351,650
Add Receipls on 1ssue ol equily shares -
At March 31, 2017 135160
Add Recewpis on issue of egquiy shares -
Less-Unllised for giving effect wo the demerger of centann businesses iplease see Note 13) 41410
At March 31, 2018 937.50
Revained earnings
AL april |, 2016 (3854}
Add Net Profit (Loss) for the vear 2473
Add lems of her Comprehensive Income recognised directly 10 retained eamings
- Remeasurements of posi-employment benefit obligations. net of taxes 0.52
lgis: Appropriabions- .
At March 31, 2017 (13.69)
Add Net Profit (Loss) Tor the year 14 52
Add Iiems of Other Comprehensive Income recognised directiy in retained eamings
Remensurements of pos-employment benefit plans directly i remined caminges EL
Lesz Appropriahons .
At March 31, 2008 8.52

Nature and purpose of Reserves
Securittes Pramium Reverve

Securtly premium reserve 15 used (0 record the premium on issue of shares or other secunities such as debontures or bonds The reserve is unhsed

sccordance with the Companies Act, 2013

16, Burrowings

Partwulsrs

Hefer
nale
L

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

April 1, 2016

Non-currenl Borrowings

Secured

Term Losns

From Banks

- Yes Bank | imited

1531

X Vehicle Loan from Banks

From other parties

- Vehicle Loan from Others

0 90

19 93

Total seenred borrowings

224

1544

19.93

Unserured

From other parties
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- From related parties 12 36
Total unsecured borrowings 32,36 - .
Total non-curreni hormwinp iy, 59 18,44 1%.93
Less Current mawiney of [ong temm loans 1343 A 38 -
Non-current borrowings (as per balance sheet) 2116 1156 19.93
Current borrowings
Secured
Lowas repayvable on dempnd
From Banks
- Cash Credit from Yes Bank Limited (Delhiy d 57123 8564 -
Net current borrowings 15113 B5.64 -
| Agmregale Secured loans 91 .46 1410 19.93
| Asggregate Unsecured joas 3236 - -
Notes:
Terme fomms:

u) The Term loans are secured agmnst an exclusive charpe over the foed assets and corrent assets of the Company and by a Corporale Guaraniee from
the parent, Security and Intelli gence Services (Indiai Limited The term loans are repavable in 42 equal monathly imstalments of Rs 0,48 million sach
and 035 million respecnvely with repamyment (o commence from June 2016 and Apr 2018 respectively and arc scheduled 10 be repand durning FY
2009-20 and FY 2021-22 respecuvely. The loan carmies. interest @ | 150 % (| Yeur MCLR « 123 bps) per annum and 9. 80% (1 Year MCLR « 100
bpsi per annum respectively.

by Wehicle Loan from Bunks are sscured against hypothecation of vehicles purchased sganst the loan mken from that Bank. The [pans have vanous
repayment schedules sind are schediled 1o be repad by 3020-21 The loan carmes interest & 10 00 % per anmum

(her loans and sdvances:

¢} Wehicle Loan from Oiher Financiers are secured by hypothecanon of the respective vehicled s) purchised agminst the loan taken from that financiern(s)
The loans have various repayment schedules and ase scheduled to be repaid by 2020-21

Xhort Term Borrowings - Secured Loans repayable on demand:

d}  Cash Credit from YES Bank i3 secured by first charge over all current assets and fived aszets of the Company and by a Corpormie Guaraniee from
the parent, Security and [nielligence Services (Indva) Limited The loan carmies inerest (@ 1035 % per annum

17. Trade pavildes

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 April 1. 2016
Current
- Trade pavables — Others 30 4% EER 1578
- Related parties . - .
Total current trade payables
Tatal trade payables 3048 3196 1578

The terms and conditions of the abave financial linbilities are as follows:

o Trade payables are non-intenest bearing und are nommally setled on credi ierms mnging fom 30-60 days which vary by vendor und tvpe of servace
b, Fox berms and conditions wath related parhies, refer 1o nole 34

Based oni the information available with the Company, there ar¢ no outstanding amount pavable to creditors who have been wdentified as “suppliers”
within the meaning of “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED] Act. 20067 as at March 31, 2018, March $1, 2007 and Aprid 1,
2016

For explanations on the Company '€ cradit nisk management processes, refer to note 35

18 (hiher linamcial T biliies

Particulars March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007 April 1, 2016
Current
[ntzrest accrued but not due on barmowings - 016 -
Interest secrued and due on borrowings - - .99
Current maturity of loag térm loans 1344 659 -
Employee bensfits pavable [IECE 2018 6771
Total current ather financial liabilities 117.37 95,93 &', 70
Tatal sther financial linbilitics 127.37 95.93 9,70
15 Financil instruments by coregory
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
. Amnrtised ] - Amaortised " Amariised
FVTPL | FYTOCI pe FVTPL FY T e FYTPL | FYTOLL o8t
Financinl Asscis:
Irrve stmenis
Aonds and debentures 5173 . 187,00 - . 147,00 - "
| Trade receivables - - 212 . . 198 48 - - 143 52
Loans - - 1808 - - .94 - =1 -
Cash  and  cash = - - . . = - ]
eguivalents T8 131 | 380
Onher bank balances - - 693 - =] kN - - 173
Secunty deposils - . 3098 - =1 IE5] - . 1572
Other linancalassets | - b 25440 = - 124 85 : - 105 63
M LT O P o : ' 52134 3 62120
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March 31 2008 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
X Amortised s Amartised ot P Amartised
FYTPL FYTOC eoal FYTPL VIOl voat FYTPL FVTOLC] i
Financial
Limbilitiex:
Trode and  other 10,48 - : 3196 1 . 1578
pavables
Bormowinizs - - 310 39 - . 97 50 - - 1993
Oithier financial - - o - - - -
lihilitics 12137 595 il
Totml Fimancial 7 g 3
468 24 m» 05
Lintbrilitres . g
Viluadion methodofogies
Trivestments:

The Company's investments consist primanly of investment in equity shares and opuonally converubie debentures which are not listed on siock
exchanges The fir value of such investments where applicable is determined using o combination ol discounted cash Now analysis and optian pricing
madels,

Al of the resulting fur valoe esimates are included i Level 3 as the far values have been determined based on present vilues of expected cash Mows;
the discount rates used are adjusted for counter party or own credit risk and historscal volatility of comparable companies has been usad for the purpose
of option pricing

The following table presents the changs i Level 3 items for the periods ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017

3 Diptiomally eonvertible
Particulnrs L Sebentures
Asat April 1. 2006
Acquisitions -
Garns/losses recognized in profit or logs X
Dhspasal -
As al March 31, 2017 -
Acgusitions 4741
Interest Acerued 424
As al March 31, 2008 51.65
Unreahised gainsdlosses) recognired in profil and lass related to assets ond labalines held al the end of the | 0f
reporimg penod
March 31, 018 527
Fair Values of assets and limbilities carried st amortised eos1s are as follows:
March 31, 2018 March 3, 2017 April 1, 2016
Carrying Fair Value Carrving Fair Value Carrying Fair Value

Vilue Level 2inpauis Value Level 2 inputs Value Level 2 inpuis
Financial Assets:
Investments in debentures or bonds 197 00 162 98 147.0x) 13613 - -
Advances = = % - - -
Loans 18 DR 1845 6.94 7 . -
Sequnity Deposits 30 58 31 06 18,51 1379 15.72 1572
Trade receivables 282 12 283,12 158 48 |94 45 143,32 143,53
Cash und cash equivalents 39 85 ELE] 2,81 28l 358 60 35860
Other bank balances [ 693 i 27m in 17
Othier finoneal wssets 254 40 254 .40 124 85 134 85 105 563 10563
Financial Linbilities:
Horrowings 31039 302,25 97.50 9750 19.93 1991
Onher financial habwlities 13737 127.37 93593 9593 69 T0 69,70
Trude pavables 30 48 1048 33.95 31 0% 15.78 15,78

The Company assessed that fair value of cash nnd shout-term deposits, trade receivables, capital creditors, tmde payables, bank overdralts and other
current Habilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-lerm maturities of these instruments

Valuation inpues ond refetionships to fair value
The following tuble summarises the quantitstive mformauon sbout the sigmiican unob=ervable mputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

Particulars Fair value as at Significamt Sensitiviry
March March | Aprill, unobservable
31,2008 | 302007 2016 inputs
Optionally convertible debentures 5273 . - Projected | vear delay i mterest payment wall
cash Nows decrease fmr value by INR 2 17 milliony

Faluation

The finance deparitient of the Company ineludes our team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabiliies required for financial reporting
purposcs, including level 3 fair values The tcam reports direcily to the Parent's chiel financial officer (CFY) Discussions of valuation processes and
resulis are held between the CFO and the valuation team at least once every 3 months, m line with the Company s quartetly reporting period Fxternal
vitluer's ussistance is also mken [or valuation purposes wherever required

The masn fevel 3 inputs for mvestment in equity shares of unguoted companies usad by the Company ore derived ond evalunted s follows
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= [hsgounts rate are determmned using & capital asset pricing model to caloulate a pre=tax rate thal reflects current market assessments of the time value

of money wnd the nsk specfic w the nssel

o Risk sdjustments specifie w ihe counter partjes (ineluding assumptions aboul cradit defaull mtes) are derved from enedi nsk grading determined by

the Company s intenal credis management group

= Wolsihity used for option pricing model 15 based on histoneal volatlity of compamble companics

s Contingent consideration - estimaed based on expected cash outlows aosing from the forecasted sales and the entines,

and how the current cconomic environment is hkely to mmpact it

NL Provisioms

knpwledge of the busmwess

Al March 31, 2018

Current

Non-curmenl

Particulars Gratuity Leave labilities Total
Al Apnil 1, M6
Current |.14 230 344
Mon-curreni 935 . 835
Total 10,49 1.30 1279
Ax Mareh 31, 2007
Current 1.3 106 440
Mo -currenl 14.75 - 14,75
Total 16,07 EX 19.15
Al March 31, 2008
Currem 136 187 543
Mon-current 17,75 - 17.75
Total L3 1.R7 1118
Refer note 26 for details of employee benéfits
21 Other hnbilities
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007 April 1, 2016
(Hher current liahilities
Advances received (rom eustomers - 026 017
Statutory dues pavable 58,80 %12 00
Other payables und accruals 46,54 953 85
Total other current liabilities 105,74 89 4702
Total other labilities 185,74 3B 47.02
21, Cawernment granis
Particulars March 31, 2018
An April |, 2017
Recei wed dunﬁ the year 311
Helepsed 1o the statement of profit and loss 431

The Company is avaihng of benefits under 8 government scheme - Pradhan Manim Bojgor Protsahen Youne (PMEPY ) wheremn the Centml Government

1% paying the employer's contnbution towards Employee Pension Scheme m respect of new emplovess meeling specified crilena,

The wrant 1 pud by

the Government en a monthly basis on fullil meat of cermin conditions Accerdingly, such Government Cirant 15 taken to profit or loss when the conditions

are met

21, Hevenue Mmom operalions

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Rendering of services
From Facility Management Services 1.770.4% | 426 &1
Total rendering of services 1.770.49 | 42661
Chther operating revenves . %
Total 1,770.4% 1.4 26,61
14, (Mher meome
Particulars March 31. 2018 March J1, 2017
[nierest income from fnancial assets ol amoriized cost 1746 2o 40
Interest Income from Financial asseiz at FYTPL 4 67 -
313 6,40

15, (hher gainsflosses

Particulars March 31, 3018 March 31, 2017
Ciher 1ems . 0.1l
Fair value gain on financia! assets mandatonly valued st FYTPL 1 07 .
g 1.07 .11

28




Service Master Clean Limited

AN In INR miltion except share dora

16, Emploses benefits expense
at  Emgloyvee coats inglude:

Particulars Murch 31, 2018 March 31, 27
Sularies, wages and bonus 1,323.18 935.26
Contrbution 10 provident and other fands 274.05 203.09
Less: (hovernment graals (MNole 22) E31 -
Employ ee share-hased payment éxpense 1.0 271
Gratuity expenis 9.04 6.26
Leave compensation {0.19) 077
Stafl welfure expenses 0.35 0.07
Tatal employee benefit expense 1,535.32 1,148.18

by Unfunded Scheme - Leave abligations

Leave obhigations cover the Company’s habilty for sick and camed kiave.

The amount of the provision of [MR 2. 87 million (March 31, 2017 - INR 3.07 mullion, Apnl 1, 2016 INR 2.30 million) included in Note 20'is presented
s current, since the Company does not have an unconditional night 1o defer settlement of any of these obliganons, However, based on past cxpenence,
thie Company does nof expect all employees o lake the Tull amount of accrued leave within the nest 12 months, The following smount reflects leave that
15 il expecied to be laken within the next 12 months

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Current keave obligation nol expected to be settled within next N 144 1.81
12 maonths
Unfunded Schemes:

As at March 31, 2008 Asat March 31, 2007
Present Value of unfunded obligations 2.88 107
Expenses 10 be recognized m the stidement of Profil and Loss (0,19} 077
Dizcount Rate (Per Annum ) T20% 0.55%
Salary Escalalion rate (Per Annum) B00% .00

The hability Tor eamed and sick leave s recognised and measured af the present value of the estimated fulure cash flows to be made in respect of all
employees at the reporting date In determuaning the present value of the liability, attrition mtes and pay increases through pramotion and inflaton have
been taken inie account.

e} Defined contribution plans

e Company has certan defined contnbution plans

Contribubions are made to provident fumd for employees at the sate of 12% of the salary (subyject oo limit of INR 15,000 salary ) as per regulations, The
contributinns are made to 8 statutory provident fund admimstered by the Government The obligaton of the Company is limited to the amount contributed
and it has no further contractual or constructive obligation in this regard

Further contrnibutions ane mude in respect of Employecs” State Insurance Scheme al the rate of 4.75% of the gross pay 83 per regulations. The contnibul ions
are towards meadical benefits provided by the Government 1o (he employees. The contributions are made 10 employees’ state insumnee mathorities
administersd by the Govermment. The obligation ol the Company is limited (o the amount contributed and it hes no lerther contraciual o constroctive
obligation in this regard

Contributions to provident fund and employees” state insurance scheme are recognized as an expense as they become payable which cotncides with the
peniad dunng which relevant employee services are recerved. Prepaid conmmibutions ame recognized as an nsset o the extent that acash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

The expense recogmsed during the period twards de fimed contrbution plans 35 INR 27205 million (Morch 31, 2017 = INR 203 09 miilion)

dr  Delined benelits plans

In acoordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, the Com pany provides for a lump sum payment io eligible employees, al retirement o lermanaion
of employment hased on the list drvn salary and years of employment wath the Company  The amount of gratuity payable on retivement/ tarmination is
the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month computed propartionately for 15 days salary multiplied by the number of years of service. The gratuity
plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised fund in Indie The Company does net fully fund the hiability and maintins &
target level of funding 1o ke mmntamed over a penod of ime bascd on estimations of expecied graiuty paymenis

I'he Company his nvested the plon assels in the msurer monaged lunds

I'he fallowing tahles summarnses the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of peofit or boss and the funded status and amounts
recognised in the halance sheet for the respective plang

Expenditare iv be recogmized during the perivd:

Particuliars As at March 31, 2018 As al March 31,2017 |
Cutrent Service Cost 7.86 547
Past Service Cost 0.1% .
Interesi Cost 1.02 0.79
Tatal amount recognised in profit or loss 9.04 6.26
Remeasurements
Retum on plan assets, includeéd amounts included in interest income (0.02) (0.02)
nin {lasg) From changes in [nancial assumptions (067} 0.75
change in demogruphic assumptions [2.76) +
Expenence gain (loss) (0.29) [1.45)
_Tetal amaunt recopnised in uth:rwmhﬂqu . {3.73) {0.76)
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Change in presemt value of defined benefit obligation is summarized befow:

Reconcilintion of opening and elosing bulances of Defined Benefis Obligotion Aamt As at
Mairch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Bencfit obligation at the beginning of vear 17.28 11.87
Current Service Cost 7.BR 547
Pust Sepvice Cost 0.15 -
Intérest Cost 1.05 0.81
Remensurements [3.71) [D.74)
Benelils pard 10.78) (0.13)
Defined Benefit obligation nt year end 71.85 17.28
Recomciliation of fuir valise of Plan Assets.
Recoaciliation of opening and closing balances of fair vabue of Plan Assets s m:';':' S Mm:‘;l‘: —_—
Fur value of Plan Assets at the begimning ol the period 119 .69
Interest income 0.03 0.02
Remensurements .02 .02
Contribution by Employver LL9 0.59
Henefits Pad 10.78) (0.13)
| Fair value of Plan Assets st the closing of the period 1.5§ 119 |
Revorcifiotion of fafr valie of Assers and (bligations.
As at Asal
P'““,’""‘" March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Faur value of Plan Assets 1.55 1.19
Present value of Obligation 21.85 17.28
Asset (liability) recognized in Balance Sheet 20.31 16,09

The present value of defined bemiefit obligation relates (0 active employees only

The Company has no legal obligmtion 1o setibe the deficit in the funded plans with an immediate contribution or additional onc-off comtributions. The
Company intends to continug 1o contribule to the defined benefit plins 1o achieve mrget level of funding 10 be mantained over & period of time based on

estimations of expectod gratuity paymenis

The principal assumptions usad in determining gratuity and post-emplovment benafit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below

Prircipul Assumptiegns:
Asal As at
Farvicolnry March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Discount Rate T WP f 5%
Fudure salery Increase
- NMon-Billing [ mdwrect employvess B O0F4 B.00%%
- Billing ‘direct employees 5 D0Ry 5. 0P
Astrition rate
Billing Emghovees
- Age ftom 21-30 years 4% AP
31-34 404 35%
= 3540 4 L)
145 5% 1504
. 4659 A% 20%
Non Bilimg Empliyees
- Age from 21-30 years | 8% 153
1140 % 1%
. 4150 5% 1%
- 51 & above 4% G
A gquantitative sensitivity analvsis o sienifican assumption as at March 31, 2008 15 as shown below
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 5% incrense 0L5% deerease | LYW increase DA%, ;uruu
Impact on defined benelit obligs tian
Ii-Mar-17 {2 59%) 273% 21M% (2.61%)
3 f-Afae- 18 {2.27%) 1 3% 226% (2.25%)

The abowve sensitivity analvses are based on o change ini assumption while holding all other assumptions comstant [ practice, this s unlikely [0 vcour,
and changes m some of the assumpiions may be correlmed. When calculating the sensiivity of the defined benefit obligation w significant actuamal
ussumptions, the same method (present value ol the defined benelM obligation calculated with the projected credit unit method a1 the end of the reporting
period) has been applied os when caloulating the defined benafit habality recognised in (he Balance sheet

The methods and types of sssumptions used m prepanng the sonsitivity analysis did not change compared o the previous year

The major catepory of plen assels wre as follows:

March 31, 2018 Muarch 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
| Unquoted | Total % Unquoted | Total "Mu Unguoted | Total | %
Insurance Policies L 5 .55 100 119 | 18 100 0 69 069 | 100
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Rivk Expusure

Through its defined benefil plans, the Company 15 exposed 1o & number of risks, the most sigmihcant of whoch are market volabilily, chamges i inflation,
chanyes in inlerest ratss, nsang lqmﬁmllty_ changng economic environment and regulatory changes

The Company has selectzd & suitable insurer 10 manage the funds in such o manner as 1o ensure that the myestment positions are managed with an asset-
lisbility matching framework that bas been developed 1o achicve investments which are m line with the obligations wnder the employee henefin plans
‘Within this ramework. the asset-Tability matching objective &5 10 match assets 10 the obligations by investing in seouries o match the henelil poyments
as they fall due.

The insurer, on behall of the Company, actively manitors how the duration and the expected vield of the mvestments are matching the expected cash
outllows srsing {tom employee benefit obhgations The Company has not chapped the processes used (o manuge 1ts nsks fram previous penods

Investments are well diversified. such that failime of any single investment should not have & matenial empact on the overall level of assels

benefit linbiticy and emplover contributions

The weighted average duration of the post-employment benefit plan obligetions s 4 56 vears (March 31, 2017 = 332 vears. The cxpected maturity

analysis of undiscounted pratuity buenefits is as follows

Less than a year | Between |- years | Berween 2-Syears | Over 5 Vears | Total |
March 31, 2018
Defined benelit obligations (giaiuty) 4.10 419 11.85 1338 | 3352
March 31, 20017
Defined benelil obhgations [gratuy) 231 245 [EL 1325 | 264
27. Finupce costs
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 3, 2017
Intevest and finance charges on fmancial habnbbes nod al far value through profit or foss 2682 1515
(het bormowing costs 0.70 064
| Hank charges - Finance Cosi 117 447
Flina i cosls expensed in prafit or loss 28.69 20,26
28 Deprection and smorfimtion eypese
Particulars March 3. 2018 March 31, 2017
Depreciation on propetly, plant and equpment (MNole 4) 19 O 19,16
Amortization of itangible wssely [nole 5 3.0 204
Taotal depreciation and amortisiting expense 11.26 21.20
29, Oiher expenses
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 3017
Training Fxpenses 017 0.16
Other Durect Costs [ 149.70
Umifiorm and kit sems 319 547
Selling Fxpenses 1144 10,82
Admimstrafive Experses
-Travelling and Conveyance 12.41 20598
-Postage and Telephone 2.41 145
-Stvionary and Printing 152 1.08
-Ftes & Toxes .34 1.20
-insunince 1.28 0.49
-Repairs and Mainlenance
Buildings 0.06 =
Machinery 49.01 5,65
(nhers 0.18 D.22
Vehiele Hire Charpes 1.82 1.51
Pavments 1o auditors {Refer details below) 0.38 045
-Leeal and professional fees 3198 214
-Other Adminisiration and General Expenses 6.94 5.23
TLS? .55
Payaent to Auditory
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
As awditor:
Audit fee 0.20 020
I gthier capaeity:
Tuxalion mutizes .09 016
her services {certilication [ees) 0o ]
Total payment to awd tors 0.38 0.45

32




Service Master Clean Limited

All in INB million excear share data

3. Earnings per sharc (EP'S)
A reconcilistion ol peafit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of bas:c and diluled samings per equity share is sl out below

Farticulars March 31, 2018 Miarch 31, 2007

Profit attributahle to equity holders of the Company
Contimiing operalions 19.52 24.73
Profit attributahle 1o equity holders of the Company Tor basic/diluted camings 19.52 4,73
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic/'dilued EPS 1.95,12.800.00 1,95,12,800.00
Wominal value of equity shates (THNR ) (1] 10
Earmings per shire

Basic (INR) 1.00 1.27

Dhluted (TNR) 1.00 1L.37

AL Commitments nnd comtingencies

n) Lewses

Uperaiing lewe comnitren — Compaiy av leviee

Operating lease arrangements comprise o ofMice premises and Barracks. All the lease ngrements are cincellshle with o natices period ranging from 2 months
to & months, Most leases also provide a renewal clause with an escalation in lease rental which 15 generally higher than the expected inflation mic

Purticulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2007

Lease reminls racopnizad in profit & loss account for the period 617 428
Minimum [_ease Poyments

- Mot later than onc vear Wil Nil
= Later than one year bul nol laler thin five years Nil Nil
= Later than five vears Wil Nil

b} Contingend lisbilities
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 1, 2016

Claims against the Company not scknowledged as debt 120 1.33 133

The Company recouds  lsbility when 1 15 both probable that & loss has been mcwred and U @mount can be reasonably esumated. Sigmilicant judgment
is required to determine both probabiliy and the cstimated smount The Company reviews these provisiens penodically and adjusts these provisions
accordingly to reflect the impact of negotanons, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel| and updated information. The Com pany believes that the amouni
or estimable range of reasonably possible loss. will not. either individually er in the aggrepate, have o maten ol adverse effect on its business, linaneial posioon,
resubs of the Company, orcash flows with respect 1o loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as al March 31, 2018

nsputed claims against the Company, mcluding claims rmsed by the tax authoritizs (2 g, Service tax) and which are pending in appeal /coun and for
which no reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, are not provided for in the accounts. However, the present obligation, (any, as
a resull of past events with a possibility of outflow of resources, when relinbly estumable, i1s recogmized in the accounis as an expense as and when such
ahligation orystallises

3L Operating segment

Particulnrs March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Revenue from lacility management 1,770.49 142661
EBIDTA rom Facihily musnagement 5776 LN

The Company 15 requirad o disclose segment mformation based on the “management appeoach’ as defined in Ind AS 108- Operating Segments, which
i1 howe the Chief Operating Decisinn Makes (CODMY evaluates the Company’s performunce and allocates resources based on the analvsis of the vanous
performance indicaions In the case of the Company, the CODM reviews the vesults of the Company s s whole as the Company is primanly engaged in
the business of rendering secunty services i India. Accordingly, the Company is a single CGU, hence single segment Company. The information as
required under Ind AS 108 5 avaslable directly from the financial saements, hence no sepamte disclosures have been made

Major Custemers
Ihe Company sencrates 105 or more of i lotal external revenue from the following customers:
Customer March 31, 20018 March 31, 20017
Customer A - 16128
Custnmer B | &0 08 -
33 Interests in other eoiities
dnformation abost subsidiaries
The subs:dianes of the Company are
Principal Ownership interest held Uy | O Pership interent held
. by the non-controlling
place of the Company P
Name business and Principal activities
couniry of “;rh March April 1, N?Irﬂ ‘“';:'th "‘Il“‘u
MO qorg | L2007 2006 | auy | am7 | 2016
¥rect subshdinries
Sisies Dty in and apenis for lands. bdinges.
- _ fictonies, hairse, Mats and other residential, . . .
Emu:das Prvate | Indm comitescial, sgrigyitural and mining MA | L0000 | 100 0% NA | D00% | D00
g | properiies snd constrect, maintam and

[ &

< Z8 o
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alver residennal commercial and industrial
plots and properuss

Diealing in and agents (or lands, butldings,
Tactonies, louse, Tats and other resideniial,

Note 33 above provides the information about the Company s strocture including the detals of the suhsidianes

Vardan Overseas cammercial, agricultural and minig = ’ .
Private Limifiod Indsa properties and construct, maintain and NA | 100 00% | 10000% NA | DD0% | 0 00%
alier residential commercial and industrial
_plots mnd propertics
Lotus Leaming - Trading of books, penodicals, magazines, ; :
Private Limfisd India and athes print als NA | I0000% | )0000% NA | D00 | 000G
Thae hatding company
The halding company and the ultmate holding eompany 1= Secunity & ntellipence Services ( India) Limited which is based and listed in indis
Associates
Principal
placeof Urwmership interest hedd by the Company
Name business and Principnl activities
country of March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007 April 1, 2016
incorporation N wihichi
515 Cash Cash-mn-transit, ATM cash replenishment
Services Private India activities and sécure iranspartation of G B, @ A 9 69%
Lamuied precious yiems and bullion
Jonini vemtures in which the Company is @ joinr venfurer
The joint ventures considered n the ation of these Financial Statements are
Principal
place of Ownership interest held by the Company
Nume husimess nndd Principal mctivities
m"""“ March 31, 2018 March 312017 | April 1. 2016
S5 Prosegur
Alarm
Morworing & | ndia Alarm Monitoring and Response Services 27 50% 50 00% 50 00%
servives  Privabe
Limited
34, Related party transactions

Vardan Oversens Privats Limited (upio 18th Januarv 20| 8)
Lotus Lepming Privaie Limited (upio | 8th fanuary 3018}

Damies af redated parties
Heolding Company Secunty and Intellipence Services { India) Limited tultimaste holding campany )
Subsidianes Sunravs Overseas Private Limuted {upto | $th January 2018

Kev Management Personnal and therr relatives

[har) Singh(hrector)

Fatury Eishore Sinhad Director)

Favindrs Kshore Sinha Director)
Shamsher Pun{Direcior)

Arvind Kumar Prasad(Director)

Devdas Aptel Directon)

Hiajesh Kumar( Director]

Prukush Bingolai Viee Presdent, Operations)

AssociaesJoint Venre entities

515 Prosegur Alarm Monitoring & Rosponse services Privine Limited (joint vemure)

Enterpnses owned or significantly influenced by group
of individuals or their relatives who have control or
significant influence over the Company

SIS Group International [aldings Pry Lid. (sigmficant shareholder)
15 Cash Services Private Limited (associals of holding company )
Terminix SIS Indin Pvi. Lid (subsidiney of holding company )

515 Asset Managemem Privae Limated

Sunrays Overseas Private Limuted {(w.c.f 19th January 2018)
Vardan Overseas Private Limited (w e T 19th January 2018}

Lotus Learning Private Limited (w.e f |9h January 200183
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The following tible provides the toul smount of ransactons thot have been entered mio with related partics for the relevant financial year

Haolding | Subsidiaries | Joint | Associales Key Enterprises owned or Toial
Companies venure management | significantly influenced
personnel by group of individuals
and their or their relatives wha
relatives have contrnl ar
significant influence
over ihe Company
Transactions during the year
Invessments Made Mar-18 = s - - - O O} L0000
Mar-17 - 16397 . - . 147.00 JI0.97
Loans & advances Mar-18 - - - - = %
piven Miar-17 - | 7.03 - - 9,60 1663
Admanistrative Mai-18 433 - - 525 978
Expenses Maid tdar-17 148 78 - - - - 153 15229
Service charges Mar-18 148 1635 030 4.57 17.00
teceived Mar-17 161 43 317 .20 1.55 | 16637
Interest [ncome Mar-18 0X - 26,82 27.02
Mar-17 14:9% 121 - - £25 24.41
Salary & Mar-18 - - - - ISR - 158
remuneration pad Mar-17 2 = = - 202 B 202
Demerger of Mar-18 41410 41410
Payroll business & | Mar-17 = = =
Investments
Financial gunrantes | Mar-18 : - = -
received Mar-17 153 - - = - 253
Balances outstanding al end of (he vear
Share Capital Mar-18 [15.13 1.431.60 | 1.546 7]
fimeluding shire AMar-17 11513 1,431.60 | 1 54673
paemim} Mar-16 1§5.13 - . 143160 | 154673
Loans & advances Mar-18 3236 - - - 3 32 36
payable Mlar-17 - - . -
Mar-16 - -
Loans & advances Mar-18 - - 21.21 21.21
recervahle Mar-17 - 1703 .60 2661
Mar-16 - - -
Bonds or Mar-18 - - - 247 00 24700
Debentures Mar-17 - - - - 147 00 147 ()
Mar-16 3 = 3 % = 3
Interest Recavable Mar- 18 {20 - 3158 3178
Mlar-17 13.43 108 - - 743 21
Mar-16 - - -
Investment in Mar-18 - - - 110,00 - 491 66 602 6t
Equity Capital Mar-17 = 41387 1 10,00 - 49266 | 101663
(inéluding Share Mar-16 - 230 110 492 66 452 66
Premium)
Other payable & Mar-18 M7 - ol .18
Aerual Mar-17 - - 1.30 1.30
Mar-16 - - 112 1.12
Financial guaraniee | Mag-18 166 - - - - 2 a6
recctved Mae-17 | 86 - - - . . 1496
Mir-16 007 - - - - - aa7
Lonns & sdvances Mar-1 8 - 1.3% - 0.04 1.70 313
mnd Other Mar-|T 2116 01 30 E 008 21,34
recervables Mar-16 23151 {1 50 - .01 .14 2016

Termes and condifions of transactions with related pariies
Transactions relating to dividends paid, subseniption for new equity shires were on the same terms and conditions that applied to other shareholders
Refer notz 13 in respect ol demerger of payroll business of SMC business
The sales 1o and purchuses from related parties are made on nomal commercial wems and conditions and ol market rates. Cuistanding balances at the
year-end are unsecurcd and carry interest equivalent to market rme whese specified in terms of the tmmsactions and setilement accurs in cash For the
vear ended March 11 2018, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating 1o amounts owed by relared parties {March 31, 3017
INR Nil, April 1. 2016, Nil) This nssessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial posinon of the reluted party and the

murked in which the related party operaies
There i% no allowance account for impaired receivables (0 relation w 2ny outsranding balances, and no expense has been recogmised in respect of impaired

recoivables due from related porties
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A5 Financial rish mianagemeni

The Company's principal financial habifities, comprise loans and borrowangs, wade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main
purpase of these financial habidies is t Ananes the Campeny's operations The Company & prineipal Amancinl assers inclode tmde and other reeeivables,
and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations and loans, sscunty and other deposils

The Company’s operations expose it to market risk, credit nsk and liguidity risk The Company”s facus (s to reduce valatility in financial statements
while mmntaining kalance between providing predictabality in the Company 's busingss plan along with reasonable partscipation in market movement It
15 the Company s pohcy thm no rading in dervatives for specolalive purposes may be undenaken

Market risk

Market nsk is the nsk that the fur value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Muctuate because of changes in market prnces Market nsk
mainly comprisas currency risk and imterest rate sk, Financial instuments affeeted by markes risk include loans and borrowings, loans and deposits
given, FYWTOCT investments and denvative financial instruments.

Foreign currency risk
Foretgn currency nsk 15 the nsk that the faur value or future cash Tows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates which
mvses. from arises from aszats and hiabilines denominated in currencies other than the functional cumency of the réspective éntities and foreign currency
revenue and cash flows. The Company s exposure to the rigk of changes in foreign exchange rates relases primarily o the Company 's operating activities
(when revenue or expense is denomimated in a foreign currency ) and the Company s nel investments in foreign subsidianes. The Company has hmiled
forcign curmency transactions and has limited exposure to foreign cumency assers and habilines resulting in the forzign currency nisk being low
The cxechinge rale hetween the Indian Rupes and foreign cumrencies has fluctuatad in recent years and may continue to do soim the future. Consequently,
the resulis af the Company’s operations may be alTacted as the Indun Rupes spprecistecdepreciates agmost these currencies
The cammying amaunl of formgn cumency denominated Noancial assets are as follows
flrﬂcl.l_!lri Murch 31, 2008 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Financial habibines 4,40 1453 3 5H

Fmrerest rare risk

Interes: mie nisk prmanly anses from (leatmg roie bormowing, mcludmg vanous revolving and other [ines of credit. Interest mte nisk 13 the nsk that the
Fair value or {utwre cash Dows of 3 fmanc il mstrument will Nuctuste because of chianges i market mlevest rates. The Company s exposure 1o the nsk of
changes in market interest mies anses on borrowings with floating interest rate which is not material

The exposune of the Company”s bormiwing to inleest rate changes at the end of the reporing period are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Varisble rate borrowings
= (Cash credit o] £S5 63 -
Bank overdraft - - -
- Term loans 3157 15.21 19 93
Fixed rate bormowings 1502 EI] .
Tatal borrowings 11182 104,10 19.93

The Company s fixed rate harrowings ars camed at amortisad cost. They are therefore not subject t imterest mie nsk as defined in Ind-AS 107, since
nefther the carrying amount nor the future cash Nows will Muctuste because of a change i market mterest mtes

Prafit or (o4 i3 sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings a8 o resalt of changes in interes mtes

Farticulars March 31, 20018 March 31, 2007
Imterest mies - incremse by 15 buas ponis * 0 81 i} 36
Interest rates - decrease by 25 basis poimis * [.81) (026}

*Haolding all other vannbles consmnt

Credif rivk

Credit risk anisas from the possibility that counterpanties may not be able to seule their obligations as agresd resulung in a Ninencial loss The primary
exposure o credit nsk anses from Trade recervables and Uniulled sevenue amounting (o INE 28202 million and INE 227 28 millon respectively as it
March 31, 2015 {[NR |98.48 million and INR 11713 million respectively ns nt March 31, 2017) These are unsecurad and are managed by the Company
through o sysiem of penodically assessing the financial rehability of customers, taking mtn sccounl the financial condition, eurrent economic trends, and
anilysis of historical bad detns and aging of secounts recervable. One customer accounted Tor 10.17% and || 40% of the accounts recervable as of
March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respectively and 10.17% of the revenues for the year ended March 31, 201 8 while another customer accounted for
11.26% of the revenues for the venr ended March 31, 2017, There is ao significant concentration of credit risk The Company uses the ECL method 10
assess the loss allowance for Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue taking mto sccount primanly the histonical trends and anabysis of bad detes, The
company does nol expect any credil nsk or impairment in respect of amount lent 10 related parties.

The crealil nisk for financial assets other than hank halances and trade recedvables are considered low

Significans gxtimates and fudgements:

dmpairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for (inancial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and 2xpected loss ries. The company uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs 10 the impamment calculation, based on the Company s past history and existing markel
conditions. The company ¢stimabes |oss arsing on trude receivables as a percentage of sales based on past trends and siuch boss s directly debited o
revenue instend of ercatng a provision [or imparrment of receivables

Financlal lnstrumernos and cash

Credst nisk from balsnces with banks and financial instiutions is managed by the Company’s treasury depanment in accordance with the Company’s
pohcy. Surplus fundsare invested m hank fixed deposits or used 1o temporarily reduce the balance of cash credit accounts (o optimize inferesi costs,
Liguidiey rivk

liquidity risk 15 the nsk that the Company will-encounter difficulty in mecung s obliganons associned with financial lisbalines. The Company
consistently generates sufficient cash flows frd;u"l ﬂpl.'r&tm and Ilqs access o multiple sources of funding 1o méet 19 financml abliganons and msnion
adequate hquidity for use .
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The Company's ohjective 14 1o maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafis, bank loans, debentures,
shareholder equity, and finance leaszs

Approximately 68.60%; of the Company®s long werm debr will mature in bess than one yesr at March 31, 2008 (March 31, 2017 35.68%, Apal 1, 2016
(19%) hased on the earrying value of barrowings reflected in the Minancial stotements The Campany has assessed the concentration af risk with respect w
refinencing its debt and concluded it e be low. The Company has access 1o 2 suffecient vanety of sources of funding and significant portion of short lerm
debl maturing within |2 months can be rolled over with exisung lenders. The Company bebeves that it has sufficient working capial and cash acciuals
o meet 1t business sequirenients and other obliganony

I'he table below summanses the matunty profile of the Cempany ¢ financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments

Fear ended March 31, 2018

Particulars On demanid | Less than 3 months 3 o 12 months linSyears | >Svears | Totwal
Borrowings 25723 307 10 36 5316 - | 32382
Other fimancial labaliies - - 11385 . - - | 1133
Emploves benelin payable
Trade and other payables B 48 - . - 3048
Yenr ended March 31, 2017
Particulars On demand Less than 3 monihs 3 o 12 months lioSyears | >Svears | Tofal
Bomowings 85 65 - 658 11.57 -1 1410
Trade and other payables - 33 84 - - . 1396
Oither fimancinl liabilities - BS 3 - - - B934
Asat April 1, 2016
Particulars On demand Less than 3 monthy Jio 1} months 1o 5 yenrs =8 yemrs | Toinl
Borrowinis . - - 1993 - 1993
Trade and other pavables . 15 7R - - -1 157K
Chber financial habalies - 6970 - - - | 6570

As a matter of policy, the Company does nol carry out any hed ging activibies
Thre have been no default in servicing bormowings and’ or breaches in loan covenants

During the year ended March 31, X8, the Company has subscribed to 500,000 of Opionally Convertible Debentures of INR. 100 each of Terminix
SIS Indin Private Limited. These Optionally Convertible Debentures are recorded under investments in bonds and debentures and catcgonzed 25
finaneial assets under fair value through profit and less as per [nd-AS 109 As aresulr of the fur valustion as at March 3|, 2018, g pain of INR 1 02
million has been recognised in “Other Gainsloss™ in the Starement of Probic wod Loss

The entity has the following financial ass=ts and liabilives &t FVTPL which are mandatonly measured ot FVTPL 10 secordance with the requirements of
[nd AS 109,

N Asat
oo March 312018 | March 31,2017 | April 1, 3016 |
Finnncinl Asseis:
Investmenis 52.73 - -
Total Financial Assets 51.73 -

The transaction pnice ot origination of the Millowing Minapcisl assers are different from its fue value at onginaion
Mareh 31, 2018 Murch 31, 2007 April 1, 2006

Transacti | Carrvin | Differ | Transacti | Carryin | Differ | Tramsacti | Carryin | Dilfer

onVale | gValue | enee | onValue | gpValue | emce | vn Value | g Value | ence

Particulars

Financinl Assets:
Sevunty depasits 106 3098 0.08 19.07 18.51 .56 16.44 15.72 0,72
Total Finuncial Asseis 10K J0.8 AL 19.07 1851 0.56 16.44 15.72 072

The entity has the following financul assets which are subject to the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109, On sssessment ol the finure cash Nows
arising from these assets, the Company believes that there is no previsson required to be made for imparment losses on these assets

# Asat
FA March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 1016
| Finaneil Assers:
Trade receivables 28212 198 48 141 52
Secunty deposits 098 1851 1572
Investmenis in debentures 197,00 147.00 .
Total Financial Assets 510.10 361.99 15924

36, Addiviona | capital o sclosures

For the purposs of the Compuany s capital management. capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, all othen equily ieserves attnbutabic to the

equity halders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company 's capital management 15 o maximise sharcholder value and support its sirategics

and operating requirements The key abjéctive of the Company s capital management is (o ensure that it momninins 2 stable capitl strueture with o focus

on total aquity 10 uphald investar, ereditor, and custorer confidence and to ensure future development of 1y business The Company deternmines the

capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term snd other strategic investment plans The funding requirements for the Company s

operabions are generally met though operting cash (lows genernted and supplemented by long-1erm and working capital borrowings from banks.

The Company’s ohjectives when managing capiial are 10

a)  safieguncd their ability (o continue asa poing concerm, o that they can continue 1o provide retums for shareholders and benefits for ether stkeholders,
arul
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bl  mambun an optimal capidal structure to optntise the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capiwl amacture ond makes sdjustments in hight of changes i sconomic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants lo whieh il is subyect To mamiain or sdjust the capiial structure, the Compey may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital
to sharcholders o 1sue new shares. The Company monitors eapital sing a gearing ratio, which is Net Debt divided by EBITDA. The Company defines
Mt Dxebt as borrowings less eash and cash aquivalents, excluding discontinged operations, but inclucing all free bank balanees and deposits irespective
of their duration | matuniy

Particulars Muarch 31, 2018 Muarch 31, 2007
Berrowings [MNole 16) 31039 97 50
Current portion of long senm debt (Noe 16) 1343 658
[ess: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) 19 86 281
[ess [lnresincied cash halances : 3
Net Debi — A 283.96 81.27
Equity (Mote 14) 195.13 195 13
Cnher equity (Nate 15) 947 83 |, 3401 50
Shoreholders fund - B 1,142 96 |.53563
_l:.'ju'uﬁ employed ={C=A-B) 142692 | 616.590
PAvierage capital employed 1,521 91 |, 38305
EBITDA 57.76 3319
EBIT 36,50 11,99
Retum on Avernge Capital Emploved (EBIT / Average capital emploved) 2.40% 0.86%
Geanng ratio (Ned debt / EBITIDIA) 492 245

In order to achieve this overall obyective, the Company ' capital management, amongst other things, aims to ¢nsure that it ssmuliancoesly meets finencial
envenants anached 1o its bormowings Rreaches (n meeting the finaneial eovenonts would permit the hank 1o immediaely call loans and borrowings
There have been no breaches i the financial covenants of any bormawing n the current period

Dibvelddemas

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. According 1o the Companies Act 200 3 any dividend should be declared out of seeumulated
distnbotable profits. A Company may, before the declaraion of any dividend, tranglier a percentage ol its profits for that financial year as 1t may consider
appropriate w the reserves

Alsa, refer 1o note oo |3, reganding demenger of certarn business to S15 Asset Munagement Provate Limied

37, First-time adoption of lnd-5

These financial stements. for the year ended March 31, 2018, ae the first the Company has preparad 1n accordance with [nd-AS. For all penods up o
and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financel stalements in accordance with Previous GAAP, including sccounting
stendards notified under the Compandes ( Accounting Smndards) Rules, 3006 (as amended), read together with parsraph 7 of the Companies ( Accounts)
Rules, 2004 The date of transition 1o Ind-AS s Apnl 1, 2016

Accordingly. the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind-AS applicable for periods ending oo o afler March 31, 2018,
together with the comparative period data as st and for the year ended March 31, 2017, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies
In preparing these (inancial statements, the Company”™s opening bakince sheet was prepared as a1 April 1, 2016 the Company s date of transition to Ind-
AS Ind-AS 100 requires that al| Ind-AS standards that are effective for the first Ind-AS Financial Statements be applied consistently and retrospeciively
Tor all periads presented. This note explaing the principal adjustrments made by the Company in restating its Previous GAAP lingaeil sialements, ineluding
e balance sheet ns o J\.pn] 1, 2016 and the fimmecial statements as al and for the vear ended March 31, 2017

Exemptions applied
Ind-AS 101 allows firsi-ume adopters certun exempuons rom the rewospecuve applicauen of cenumn requiremanis under Ind-AS
The Campany has applied the following exemptions:
Wmm:fmu refraspective application
A first-time adopter may opt o contrmue wath the carrying value for all of sis Properiy, plant and equipment (PPE), myvesiment properises and
intangible assels as recognised in its Previous GAAP financial statements as deemed cost o the trangition date However, it makes n
adjustments for decomm ssioming Habilities 1o be included in the cammying value of PPE. If a first-time adopter opts to use the Previous GAAT
carrying values as deemed cost at the transition dute for all its PPE, investment property of intangible assets, the fact and the sccounting policy
will be disclosed by the entity. Thas disclosure is required in the entaity’s first Ind-AS financial statements and wall continue for financial
statements of subscquent years elso until those ilems of PPE, investment propertics or intangible assety, ks the case may be, are significantly
deprecimed, impmired or derecognised from the entiey's balance sheet. The Company has wsed this exemtpiion o measare all s property, plant
and eguipment, investment propety and inangible nscets ot the Previous GAAP canrving armounl 45 ils deemed cost on the date ol transition.
b. A first-me adopter may opl (6 continue with the carrying value for all of its investments in subsidianes, joinl ventures and associates as
recognised in its Previous GAAP financial as deemad cost at the mansition date The Company hix used this exemption to measure all its
investmeants in subsidiaries. joint venmures and associates at the Previous GAAP camying amount as ns deemed cost on the date of ransinon,
. Appendix C o lad-AS |7 requires an entity 10 assess whether a contract or prmangement contuns o lease In accordance with tnd-AS 17, this
assessment should be carried out 01 the inseption of the contimel of armngenent. However, the Company has used Tnd-AS 101 exemjtions,
and mesessed all armngements hased for embedded leases based on conditions in place as ol the dote of (ransition

Murduatory Exempiions from refraspective gpplicaiion:

Futimmies

The estimates ai April |, 2016 and at March 31, 2017 are consistent wath those made for the same dates in decordance wilh Frevious GAAP (afler
adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies)

Classification and measurement af financial assers

Financial assets have been classified and measured on the bases of facts and circumstances exesting on Apnl 1, 2006

Derecognition of financiel asseis

The Company hes applied the e xemphion wnulul.tlz uudnr Ind-AS 101 10 apply the derecogninen ereria undar Ind-AS 102 mospectively for imnsactions
occuiTing of of after Apnil 12016
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Reconcilianians

The following reconciliations provide the effect of tansivon o nd-AS from Previoss GAAP m sceordance wath ind-AS 101
1. Reserves asat Apnil |, 2006 and March 31, 2017, and

2. Net Profit after wx for the veor ended March 31, 3017

Reconcifiatinns of reserves berween (nd-A5 and Previows GAAP are ghen below;

Nature of Adjustment Asal A at
April 1, 20016 March 31. 2017
Reserves as per Previous GAAP 13183 133573
Impact of recognizng and meusuning Nnanewl 255ets and finencial halities in accordance (D 59) 1.94
wilh
Ind-AS
ESOP Expenses on fair value basis : (0.19)
Expected Credit Losses {5.06) (5.00)
Others . 204
Deferred ax impact of Ind-AS adoprion 005 0.05
Reserves is per lnd-AS 1.512.73 1.340.51
Reconcillutions of Ner Profis after sax bevween fnd- AN and Brevious GAAP are given below:
Nature of Adjustment Year ended
March 31, 2017
Nel Profit as per Previous GAAP 17.40
Finance Income {1.63)
;:::i;e costs — Impact arsing on recognizang and moasunng financuml assets and financial habnes in accordance wilh 031
A
ESOPM expenses on fair value basis (0 19)
Employee benefit sxpenses - Actuanal gon and loss on long werm defined benefis plan reclassified as OC1 (net of taxes) (0.53)
[Depreciatimn and smorieation expenses 094
Expected Credi 1Losses 506
Dithers (0,24)
Defermed 1ax impact of Ind-AS adoption 199
Net Profit as per Ind-A% (A) 4.7
Orther comprehensive Incomae (nel of tax) (H) (153
Total comprehensive income as reporied under Ind-AS (A+H) 15.15

Footnates fo the reconcifiation of reverve as af April | 2016 god Marck 30, 2007 and statement of profit or loss for the yoar ended March 31, 2007
. Trade receivables ) =

LInder Previous GAAF, the Company has created provision for imparmment of receivables consisting only in respect of specific amount for incurred
losses. Under Ind-AS. impairment allowance has been determined based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) medel Due to the implemenmation of the ECL
model, the Company impaired (15 wade receivable by INRE 3.06 million on Apnd 1, 2006 which hes been eliminated against retned samings on that da
and has been subsequently reverséd in the year ended March 31 2017 For the vear ended March 31 2017, the Company has reduced its revenue hased
on actunl and expected deductions by with corresponding credit to tmede receivahles However, this has no impact on the profit for the year
emded March 31, 2017

b Leasehald

Under Ind-AS, long term lease deposits are required o be ininally measured o fair value and subsaguently at amornized cest using the effective
fnterest method Accordingly, fair value adjustment of TNR, (2 86) mallion (April 1, 2016} and INR 0 25 million (March 31. 2017} un secunity deposits
has been recogmized aganst increase in prepad assets of INR 313 mullion (Apnl 1, 2006)and INR (0 08ymillion{March 31, 2017 )and decrease in
retuincdcarmings ol TNR 0.73millen (Apnl 1, 20186) and decrease of TNR 1 63 million (March 31, 2017) in profil and loss Additionally, for the year
ended March 31, 2017, interest meome on deposit of INR 1 80 milhon = tecogmieed o the statement of profit and loss Mo such accountmg was
preseribed under Previows GAAP

e Defined benefit oblgation

Bath under Previous GAAP and Ind-AS, the Company recognised costs related 10 its post-em ployment defined benefit plan on an actuanial basns Under
Previous GAAP, the entire cost, including actuanal gains and losses, are charged 1o profit or loss. Under Ind-AS, remeasurements (compnsing of actuanal
cuing and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in et imerest on the net defined benefit lability and the reoum on plan assets
excluding amounts (acluded in net interest on the new defined benefit liabiliry ) are recognised immediately m the balance sheet with a comesponding debit
or cradit to retatned eamings through OCT Thus, the employee benefit cost or the year ended March 31, 2017 has increased by BNR 0.75 million and
remeasurement gan ! loss on defined benefit plan net of related deferred taxes of INR 024 million has been recognized in the retained eamings
through OCL

d.  Share-based paymienss

Under Previous GAAP, the Company recognised only the intrinsic value for the long-tem incentive plan as an expense. Ind-AS requires the fair valoe
of the share options 10 be determined using an appropnate pricing model recognised over the vesting period An merease in expense of INR 0 19 million
has becn recognised in profit o loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

¢ Property, plant and equipmient [
The Compeny has elected to measure all items of propesty, plant and equipment st deemed cost at the date of transition o [nd-AS

JI:rewsws GAAP required deferred lix accounting using the income statement approach, which (ocuses on differences hetween tavable profits and
secounting profits for the period. Ind-AS 12 requires entifies to account for deferred txes using the balance sheet approach, wiich Focuses on tempuorary
differences between the earrving amount of zn asset or labiity 1 the balance sheet and its tax base The application of Ind-AS 12 approach has resulted
in recognition of deferred 1ax on new temporary differences which was not requited under Provious GAAP

Inaddition. the vanous transitional adjustments lead W different emporary differences. According o the accounting policies, thie Company has 10 account
fior such differences. Deferred 1y adjustmenfs are recognised in correlation (o the underfying ranssctuion either in retained eamings of o separalc
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compaonent of squity. On the date of transition, the net impact on deferred tax assel is of INR 0.00 million (March 31,2007 280 million) with consequent
impact on retained earnings (and net profit for the vear ended March 31, 2017}

B Other comprehensive income

Under Previous GAAP, (he Company did nol recogmise other comprehensive meome ({1 separately. Hence, it has reconciled Previous GAAFP prodit

or loss 10 profit or loss as per Ind-AS. Further, Previous GAAP profit or loss is reconeiled w wtal comprehensive income as per Ind-AS.
k. Staterment of cash flows

The transition from Previous GAAP o Ind-AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash lows
i Financial instriments

Bommowings have been stated at their amortised cost on transition date and inferest expense has been computed on effective interest rate hasis, This has

resulted in reduction of bormowings by INR 0.07 and INR 0.03 as at Apnil 1. 2016 and March 31, 2017 and increase in finance costs by INR 0.04 for the
vear ended March 31, 2017
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